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Independent　Auditor’s　Report

The　Board　of　Directors

The　Shikoku　Bank，　Ltd．

The・Audit　of∫the・Consolidated・Financial・Statements

Opinion

We　have　audited　the　accompanying　consolidated　financial　statements　of　The　Shikoku　Bank，　Ltd．

（the　Bank）and　its　consolidated　subsidiaries（the　Group），　which　comprise　the　consolidated

balance　sheet　as　at　March　31，2024，　and　the　consolidated　statements　of　income，　comprehensive

income，　changes　in　net　assets，　and　cash　flows　fbr　the　year　then　ended，　and　notes　to　the

consolidated　financial　statements．

In　our　opinion，　the　accompanying　consolidated　financial　statements　present　fairly，　in　all　material

respects，　the　consolidated　financial　position　of　the　Group　as　at　March　3　1，2024，　and　its

consolidated　financial　perforrnance　and　its　consolidated　cash　flows　for　the　year　then　ended　in

accordance　with　accounting　principles　generally　accepted　in　Japan．

Basis　for　Opinion

We　conducted　our　audit　in　accordance　with　auditing　standards　generally　accepted　in　Japan．　Our

responsibilities　under　those　standards　are　fmher　described　in　the　Auditor’s　Responsibilities　for　the

Audit　of　the　Consolidated　Financial　Statements　section　of　our　report．　We　are　independent　of　the

Group　in　accordance　with　the　ethical　requirements　that　are　relevant　to　our　audit　of　the　consolidated

fmancial　statements　in　Japan，　and　we　have　fUlfilled　our　other　ethical　responsibilities　in　accordance

with　these　requirements．　We　believe　that　the　audit　evidence　we　have　obtained　is　sufficient　and

apPropriate　to　provide　a　basis　fbr　our　opinion．

Key　Audit　Matters

Key　audit　matters　are　tho　se　matters　that，　in　our　professional　judgment，　were　of　most　significance

in　our　audit　of　the　consolidated　financial　statements　of　the　current　period．

These　matters　were　addressed　in　the　context　of　the　audit　of　the　consolidated　financial　statements

as　a　whole，　and　in　forming　the　auditor’s　opinion　thereon，　and　we　do　not　provide　a　separate

opinion　on　these　matters．

We　identified　the　fbllowing　matter　as　a　Key　Audit　Matter　in　the　audit　of　the　consolidated

financial　statements　of　the　current　period．

●　Classification　of　borrowers　as　the　basis　for　determining　the　reserve　for　possible　loan

　　　　losses

D　t　fK　AdtMtt
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The　Group　is　engaged　in　the　banking　business　mainly　in　the　Shikoku　region，　with　a　fbcus　on

Kochi　PrefectUre，　and　the　lending　business　is　their　core　business．　One　of　the　Group’s　strategic

goals　is　to　provide　consulting　services　that　contribute　to　the　development　of　the　region．　To

support　the　business　growth　of　borrowers，　the　Group　fbcuses　on　lending　to　small　and

medi㎜一sized　entities　based　on　an　evaluation　of　business　potential．

The　collectability　of　loans　and　other　receivables　recorded　by　the　Group　is　affected　by　changes

in　economic　trends　in　Japan　and　overseas，　changes　in　the　financial　and　economic　environment

such　as　real　estate　prices，　interest　rates　and　stock　prices，　and　the　business　circumstances　of

bo皿owers．　As　a　result，　there　is　a　possibility　of　default　by　borrowers．　Furthermore，　changes　in

the　external　environment，　such　as　surging　natural　resource　prices　may　affect　the　performance

of　borrowers．

As　such，　the　Group　calculates　the　amount　of　expected　loss　on　nonrepayment　of　loans　and

records　it　as　a　reserve　fbr　possible　loall　losses．

The　Bankつs　carrying　amount　ofreserve　fbr　possible　loan　losses　on　a　non－consolidated　basis

㎜ounted　to￥14，600　million，　out　of　the￥15，180　million　recorded　on　the　Group’s　consolidated

balance　sheet　fbr　as　of　March　31，2024．　The　specific　calculation　method　for　the　reserve　f（）r

possible　loan　losses　is　described　in　h“Reserve　for　Possible　Loan　Losses”ofNote　l（Summary

of　Significant　Accounting　Policies）and　Note　2（Significant　Accounting　Estimates）under

Notes　to　Consolidated　Financial　Statements．

The　reserve　fbr　possible　loan　losses　is　calculated　in　accordance　with　the（｝roup’s

predetermined　guidelines　for　self－assessment，　and　write－offs　and　reserves．　The　calculation

process　includes　the　borrower　classification　which　is　determined　by　assessing　the　relevant

bo皿ower，　s　ability　to　repay　loans　based　on　considerations　such　as　its　repayment　status，

financial　position，　business　performance，　and　prospects　thereof　The　Group　deems　the

”outlook　for　the　fUture　performamce　of　the　borrowers　in　determining　bo皿ower　classification”

to　be　a　key　assumption　and　determines　the　borrower’s　classification　by　evaluating　individual

borrower’s　ability　to　earn　profit，　among　other　factors．

In　particular，　when　assessing　the　appropriate　classification　of　a　borrower，　whose　repayment

status，　financial　position，　or　business　performance　is　deteriorating，㎜ong　borrowers　to　which

the　general　reserve　fbr　possible　loan　losses　apPlies，　factors　such　as　the　reasonableness　and

feasibility　of　business　improvement　plan，　which　details　the　outlook　fbr　the　fUture

performance，　or　the　prospect　of　formulating　such　plans　and　so　forth，　may　be　a　more　impo伽t

factor　in　the　judgment．

Since　the　reasonableness　and　feasibility　of　business　improvement　plans，　or　the　prospect　of

formulating　such　plans　and　so　forth　are　affected　by　changes　in　the　business　enviroument

surrounding　the　borrower　and　the　success　or　failure　of　the　borrower’s　business　strategy，　there

is　a　high　degree　ofuncertainty　in　estimates　and　reliance　on　management’sjudgment．

In　particular，　the　impacts　of　changes　in　the　external　environment，　such　as　surging　natural

resource　prices　are　significant，　and　some　borrowers　have　not　recovered　in　their　business

performance．　Therefbre，　the　reasonableness　and　feasibility　of　fUture　business　improvement

plans，　or　the　prospect　of　formulating　such　plans　and　so　forth　involve　a　higher　degree　of

uncertainty　in　estimates　and　more　reliance　on　management’sjudgment　than　in　the　past．

Ernst＆YbungShinN「hon　LLC
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Accordingly，　among　borrowers　to　which　the　general　reserve　for　possible　loan　losses　applies，

we　have　determined　the　adequacy　of　the　classification　of　borrowers　as　a　basis　for　determining

the　reserve　fbr　possible　loan　losses，　particularly　with　respect　to　borrowers　demonstrating　a

deterioration　in　repayment　statUs，　financial　position，　or　business　performance，　to　be　a　Key

Audit　Matter．

How　the　matter　was　addressed　in　our　audit

In　considering　the　adequacy　of　the　classification　of　borrowers　and　the　timeliness　and

appropriateness　of　changes　in　estimates　related　to　estimated　loss　ratio，　we　mainly　performed

the　fbllowing　audit　procedures：

We　evaluated　the　Bank’s　internal　controls　to　ensure　the　reliability　of　determining　borrower

classification　and　the　credit　ratings　that　serve　as　the　premises　for　such　classification，　as　well　as

information　related　to　borrowers　that　forms　the　basis　for　such　determination．

We　selected　a　sample　of　those　borrowers　deemed　necessary　to　be　examined　by　taking　into

account　the　borrowerうs　industly，　repayment　status，且n｛mcial　position，　the　degree　of

deterioration　in　their　business　performance，　and　the　impacts　of　changes　in　the　external

environment，　such　as　surging　nat皿al　reso皿ce　prices　to　test　managementls　classi且cation　of

borrowers．　We　also　considered　the　quantitative　impact　of　the　changes　in　borrower

classification　on　the　recorded　amounts　of　the　reserve　for　possible　loan　losses．　In　addition，　we

utilized　our　self－assessment　anomaly　detection　tool　which　aids　in　selecting　borrowers　for

examination　by　identifying　discrepancies　between　the　bo皿ower　classification　deterrnined　by

the　Group　and　the　classification　generated丘om　a　machine　leaming　estimation　model　based

on　the　borrower’s　credit　and　financial　infbrmation．
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We　evaluated　data　regarding　the　recent　repayment　status，　financial　position，　and　business

performance　of　sampled　borrowers，　by　inspecting　a　set　of　materials　related　to　the　Bank’s　self－

assessment，　such　as　borrower－related　explanatory　materials　including　a　description　of　the

business，　borrowing　and　repayment　status，　research　materials　that　provide　details　of　actual

financial　position，　and　the　borrower’s　financial　statements　and　trial　balances．　In　addition，　we

made　inquiries　ofthe　department　responsible　fbr　credit　screening　as　necessary．

In　order　to　examine　the　reasonableness　and　feasibility　of　business　improvement　plans　and　so

forth，　for　a　borrower’s　performance，　we　evaluated　the　reliability　of　esti甑es　based　on　trend

analysis　of　past　performance　and　the　degree　of　achievement　of　management　improvement

plan　targets　in　prior　years．　Where　neces町，　we　compared　the　bo皿ower’s　performance　to

available　external　information，　such　as　performance　trends　of　other　companies　in　the　same

industry　and　industry　trend　analysis．　We　also　held　discussions　with　the　director　responsible　fbr

credit　screening，　and　personnel　from　the　department　responsible　for　credit　screening．

In　addition，　with　regard　to　certain　borrowers　who　have　not　recovered　in　their　business

performance　due　to　the　impacts　of　changes　in　the　external　environment，　such　as　surging

natural　resource　prices，　where　necessary，　we　also　discussed　with　the　director　responsible　fbr

credit　screening　and　the　department　responsible　fbr　business　support　regarding　specific

measures　for　fUture　recovery　and　the　provision　of　support　and　consulting　fUnction　of　the

Group　to　the　borrowers．

Ernst＆Ybung　ShinNihon　LLC
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Other　lnformation

The　other　information　comprises　the　i㎡formation　included　in　the　Annual　Report　that　contains

audited　consolidated　financial　statements　but　does　not　include　the　consolidated　financial

statements　and　our　auditorラs　report　thereon．

We　have　concluded　that　the　other　information　does　not　exist．　Accordingly，　we　have　not

performed　any　work　related　to　the　other　information．

Responsibilities　of　Management，　the　Audit　and　Supervisory　Committee　for　the

Consolidated　Financial　Statements

Management　is　responsible　for　the　preparation　and　fair　presentation　of　these　consolidated　financial

statements　in　accordance　with　accounting　principles　generally　accepted　in　Japan，　and　fbr　such

interna1　control　as　management　determines　is　necessary　to　enable　the　preparation　of　consolidated

financial　statements　that　are　free丘om　material　misstatement，　whether　due　to丘aud　or　error．

In　preparing　the　consolidated　financial　statements，　management　is　responsible　fbr　assessing　the

Group’s　ability　to　continue　as　a　going　concern　and　disclosing，　as　required　by　accounting　principles

generally　accepted　in　Japan，　matters　related　to　going　concem．

The　Audit　and　Supervisory　Committee　is　responsible　for　overseeing　the　Group’s　financial

reportlng　Process．

Auditor，s　Responsibilities　for　the　Audit　of　the　Consolidated　Financial　Statements

Our　obj　ectives　are　to　obtain　reasonable　assurance　about　whether　the　consolidated丘nallcial　statemerlts

as　a　whole　are　fヒee丘om　material　misstateme瓜whether　due　to　fヒaud　or　error，　and　to　issue　an　auditor’s

report　that　includes　our　opinion．　Misstatements　can　arise　from　fraud　or　error　and　are　considered

material　if，　individually　or　in　the　aggregate，　they　could　reasonably　be　expected　to　influence　the

economic　decisions　of　users　taken　on　the　basis　of　these　consolidated　financial　statements．

As　part　of　an　audit　in　accordance　with　auditing　standards　generally　accepted　in　Japan，　we　exercise

professional　j　udgment．　and　maintain　professiona1　skepticism　throughout　the　audit．　We・also：

・ Identify　and　assess　the　risks　of　material　misstatement　ofthe　consolidated　financial　statements，

　　　whether　due　to　fraud　or　error，　design　and　perform　audit　procedures　responsive　to　those　risks，

　　　and　obtain　audit　evidence　that　is　sufficient　and　apPropriate　to　provide　a　basis　for　our　opi皿ion．

・ Consider　intemal　control　relevant　to　the　audit　in　order　to　design　audit　procedures　that　are

　　　appropriate　in　the　circumstances　for　our　risk　assessments，　while　the　purpose　of　the　audit　of

　　　the　consolidated　financial　statements　is　not　expressing　an　opinion　on　the　effectiveness　of　the

　　　Group’s　intemal　control．

・　Evaluate　the　apPropriateness　of　accounting　Policies　used　and　the　reasonableness　of　accounting

　　　estimates　and　related　disclosures　made　by　management．

Ernst＆Young　ShinNihon　LLC
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・ Conclude　on　the　appropriateness　ofmanagement’s　use　of　the　going　concern　basis　of　accounting

　　　and，　based　on　the　audit　evidence　obtained，　whether　a　material　uncertainty　e）dsts　related　to　events

　　　or　conditions　that　may　cast　significant　doubt　on　the　Group’s　ability　to　continue　as　a　going

　　　concem．　If　we　conclude　that　a　material　uncertainty　exists，　we　are　required　to　draw　attention

　　　in　our　auditor’s　report　to　the　related　disclosures　in　the　consolidated　financial　statements　or，　if

　　　such　disclosures　are　inadequate，　to　modi取our　opinion，　Our　conclusions　are　based　on　the　audit

　　　evidence　obtained　up　to　the　date　of　our　auditor’s　report．　However，　fUture　events　or　conditions

　　　may　cause　the　Group　to　cease　to　continue　as　a　going　concem．

・ Evaluate　the　overall　presentation，　structure　and　content　of　the　consolidated　financial　statements，

　　　including　the　disclosures，　and　whether　the　consolidated　financial　statements　represent　the

　　　underlying　transactions　and　events　in　a　manner　that　achieves　fair　presentation　in　accordance

　　　with　accounting　principles　generally　accepted　in　Japan．

・　Obtain　sufflcient　apPropriate　audit　evidence　regarding　the　financial　illR）rmation　of　the　entities

　　　or　business　activities　within　the　Group　to　express　an　opinion　on　the　consolidated　financial

　　　statements．　W面e　responsible　fbr　the　direction，　supervision　and　performance　of　the　group

　　　audit．　W巳remain　solely　responsible　fbr　our　audit　opinion．

We　communicate　With　the　Audit　and　Supervisory　Committee　regarding，　among　other　ma賃ers，

the　planned　scope　and　timing　ofthe　audit　and　significant　audit　findings，　including　any

significant　deficiencies　in　internal　control　that　we　identify　during　our　audit．

We　also　provide　the　Audit　and　Supervisory　Committee　With　a　statement　that　we　have　complied

with　the　ethical　requirements　regarding　independence　that　are　relevant　to　our　audit　ofthe

consolidated　financial　statements　in　Ja脚，鋤d　to　co㎜皿ic飢e　With　them　all　relationships　and

other　matters　that　may　reasonably　be　thought　to　bear　on　our　independence，　and　where

applicable，　actions　taken　to　eliminate　threats　or　safeguards　applied　to　reduce　threats　to　an

acceptable　level．

From　the　ma廿ers　co㎜皿icated　With　the　Audi伽d　Supervisory　Committee，　we　determine　those

matters　that　were　of　most　significance　in　the　audit　of　the　consolidated　financial　statements　of　the

current　period　and　are　therefbre　the　key　audit　matters．　We　describe　these　matters　in　our　auditor’s

report　unless　law　or　regulation　precludes　public　disclosure　about　the　matter　or　when，　in

extremely　rare　circumstances，　we　determine　that　a　matter　should　not　be　communicated　in　our

report　because　the　adverse　consequences　of　doing　so　would　reasonably　be　expected　to　outweigh

the　public　interest　bene且ts　of　such　co㎜㎜ication．
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Convenience　Translation

The　U．S．　dollar　amounts　in　the　accompanying　consolidated　fmancial　statements　with　respect　to

the　year　ended　March　31，2024　are　presented　solely　fbr　convenience．　Our　audit　also　included　the

translation　of　Japanese　yen　amounts　into　U．S．　dollar　amounts　and，　in　our　opinion，　such

translation　has　been　made　on　the　basis　described　in　Note　5　to　the　consolidated　financial

statements．

Fee－related　lnformation

The　fees　for　the　audits　of　the　financial　statements　of　The　Shikoku　Bank，　Ltd．｛md　its　subsidiaries

and　other　services　provided　by　us　and　other　EY　member　firms　for　the　year　ended　March　31，

2024are　60　million　yen　and　5　million　yen，　respectively．

Ernst＆Young　ShinNihon　LLC
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Interest　Required　to　Be　1）isclosed　by　the　Certified　Public　Accountants　Act　of　Japan

Our負㎜and　its　designated　engagement　pa匠ners　do　not　have　any　interest　in　the　Group　which　is

reqUired　to　be　disclosed　pursumt　to止e　provisions　of止e　Certified　Public　Accountants　Act　of　Japan．

Emst＆Young　ShinlNihon　LLC
Tokyo，　Japan

September　13，2024

Masatoshi　Omura

Designated　Engagement　Partner

Certified　Public　Accountant

T（∋tsuro　T（）ne

Designated　Engagement　Partner

Certified　Public　Accountant

Ernst＆Young　ShinNihon　LLC
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

 At 31st March, 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

(Note 4) 
Assets    
Cash and due from banks (Note 25) ¥   411,090 ¥   217,360 $ 1,435,576 
Call loans and bills purchased (Note 13) 466 – – 
Debt purchased (Note 13)  12,473 11,808 77,993 
Trading account securities (Notes 13 and 14) 26 – – 
Money held in trust (Note 13) 2,000 2,906 19,199 
Securities (Notes 5, 6, 11, 13 and 14) 809,131 912,223 6,024,858 
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 5, 6, 7 and 13) 1,979,584 2,085,795 13,775,808 
Foreign exchange 15,422 9,647 63,717 
Other assets (Notes 5 and 6) 63,466 34,414 227,296 
Tangible fixed assets (Notes 8 and 9) 34,452 34,118 225,341 
Intangible fixed assets 1,945 2,222 14,676 
Net defined benefit asset (Note 16) 5,607 9,884 65,281 
Deferred income tax assets (Note 19) 19 19 129 
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees 4,104 4,396 29,040 
Reserve for possible loan losses (15,164) (15,186) (100,302) 

Total assets ¥3,324,626 ¥3,309,612 $21,858,612 

Liabilities    
Deposits (Notes 6 and 13) ¥3,088,011 ¥3,040,057 $20,078,311 
Payables under securities lending transactions 
 (Notes 6 and 13) 33,874 69 

 
461 

Borrowed money (Notes 6, 10 and 13) 8,359 66,380 438,414 

Foreign exchange 7 46 305 

Other liabilities 35,310 19,743 130,398 

Net defined benefit liability (Note 16) 76 77 512 

Reserve for retirement benefits for directors and corporate 
auditors 7 7 

 
48 

Reserve for reimbursement of deposits 402 299 1,975 

Deferred income tax liability (Note 19) 368 6,176 40,795 

Deferred income tax liability for land revaluation excess 
(Note 8) 4,141 4,128 

 
27,265 

Acceptances and guarantees 4,104 4,396 29,040 

Total liabilities 3,174,666 3,141,382 20,747,524 
Net assets (Note 12)    
Common stock 25,000 25,000 165,115 
Capital surplus 9,699 9,702 64,080 
Retained earnings 103,783 109,636 724,101 
Treasury stock, at cost (1,418) (1,369) (9,045) 

Total shareholders’ equity 137,064 142,968 944,251 
Unrealized gains on securities (Note 14) 3,871 12,975 85,695 
Net deferred hedge losses (1,145) (376) (2,486) 
Land revaluation excess (Note 8) 8,640 8,610 56,866 
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Note 16) 1,332 3,871 25,567 

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 12,698 25,079 165,642 

Stock acquisition rights (Note 18) 58 40 265 
Non-controlling interests 138 140 930 

Total net assets 149,959 168,229 1,111,088 

Total liabilities and net assets ¥3,324,626 ¥3,309,612 $21,858,612 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

 

Consolidated Statements of Income 
 

 Year ended 31st March, 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

(Note 4) 

Income (Note 20)    

Interest and dividend income:    

Interest on loans and discounts ¥20,453 ¥23,845 $157,487 

Interest and dividends on securities 9,941 10,001 66,056  

Other interest income 333 276 1,828  

Trust fees 0 0 2 

Fees and commissions 8,049 9,199 60,761  

Other operating income 16,074 5,169 34,145  

Other income 5,931 4,056 26,789  

Total income 60,784 52,549 347,068 

Expenses    

Interest expense:    

Interest on deposits 368 708 4,679 

Interest on call money and borrowings 1,130 237 1,568 

Other interest expense 291 336 2,220  

Fees and commissions 2,246 2,307 15,241  

Other operating expenses 25,560 15,807 104,400  

General and administrative expenses (Note 18) 22,353 23,025 152,077  

Other expenses (Note 24) 942 838 5,537  

Total expenses 52,893 43,261 285,722 

Profit before income taxes 7,891 9,288 61,346 

Income taxes (Note 19):    

Current 224 1,560 10,304 

Deferred 2,114 439 2,902 

 2,339 1,999 13,206 

Profit 5,552 7,288 48,140 

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 2 3 21 

Profit attributable to shareholders of The Shikoku 

Bank, Ltd. 

 

¥ 5,549 

 

¥ 7,285 

 

$ 48,119 

 (Yen) (U.S. dollars) 

Per share amounts (Note 23)   

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

¥133.28 

¥133.11 

¥174.76 

¥174.59 

$1.15 

$1.15 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
 

 Year ended 31st March, 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

(Note 4) 

    

Profit ¥ 5,552 ¥ 7,288 $ 48,140 

Other comprehensive income (Note 26): (8,474) 12,411 81,973 

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities (9,957) 9,053 59,795 

Net deferred hedge gains 805 769 5,083 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 

(Note 16) 669 2,538 

 

16,765 

Share of other comprehensive income of 

companies accounted for by equity method  8 49 

 

330 

Comprehensive income ¥(2,922) ¥19,700 $130,113 

    

Total comprehensive income attributable to:    

Shareholders of The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. ¥(2,925) ¥19,697 $130,092 

Non-controlling interests 2 3 21 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 
 

 Shareholders’ equity 

 
Common 

stock 
Capital 
surplus 

 
 

Retained 
earnings 

Treasury 
stock, 
at cost 

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 

 (Millions of yen) 

Balance at 1st April, 2022 ¥25,000 ¥9,699 ¥ 99,997 ¥(1,466) ¥133,231 

Changes during the year      

Cash dividends - - (1,774) - (1,774) 

Profit attributable to shareholders of The 

Shikoku Bank, Ltd. - - 5,549 - 5,549 

Acquisition of treasury stock - - - (1) (1) 

Disposition of treasury stock - - (0) 48 48 

Reversal of land revaluation excess - - 10 - 10 

Net changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Total changes during the year - - 3,785 47 3,832 

Balance at 31st March, 2023 ¥25,000 ¥9,699 ¥103,783 ¥(1,418) ¥137,064 

 
 Accumulated other comprehensive income    

 

Unrealized 

gains on 

securities 

Net 

deferred 

hedge 

losses 

Land 

revaluation 

excess 

Remeasurements 

of defined benefit 

plans 

Total 

accumulated 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

Stock 

acquisition 

rights 

Non- 

controlling 

interests 

Total 
net 

assets 

 (Millions of yen) 

Balance at 1st April, 2022 ¥13,820 ¥(1,951) ¥8,651 ¥  663 ¥21,184 ¥69 ¥137 ¥154,622 

Changes during the year         

Cash dividends - - - - - - - (1,774) 

Profit attributable to 

shareholders of The Shikoku 

Bank, Ltd. - - - - - 

 

 

- - 5,549 

Acquisition of treasury stock - - - - - - - (1) 

Disposition of treasury stock - - - - - - - 48 

Reversal of land revaluation 

excess - - - - - - - 10 

Net changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity 

 

(9,949) 

 

805 

 

(10) 

 

669 (8,485) 

 

(11) 

 

1 

 

(8,495) 

Total changes during the year (9,949) 805 (10) 669 (8,485) (11) 1 (4,662) 

Balance at 31st March, 2023 ¥ 3,871 ¥(1,145) ¥8,640 ¥1,332 ¥12,698 ¥58 ¥138 ¥149,959 
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (continued) 
 

 Shareholders’ equity 

 
Common 

stock 
Capital 
surplus 

 
 

Retained 
earnings 

Treasury 
stock, 
at cost 

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 

 (Millions of yen) 

Balance at 1st April, 2023 ¥25,000 ¥9,699 ¥103,783 ¥(1,418) ¥137,064 

Changes during the year      

Cash dividends - - (1,463) - (1,463) 

Profit attributable to shareholders of The 

Shikoku Bank, Ltd. - - 7,285 - 7,285 

Acquisition of treasury stock - - - (1) (1) 

Disposition of treasury stock - 2 - 50 52 

Reversal of land revaluation excess - - 30 - 30 

Net changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Total changes during the year - 2 5,853 49 5,904 

Balance at 31st March, 2024 ¥25,000 ¥9,702 ¥109,636 ¥(1,369) ¥142,968 

 
 Accumulated other comprehensive income    

 

Unrealized 

gains on 

securities 

Net 

deferred 

hedge 

losses 

Land 

revaluation 

excess 

Remeasurements 

of defined benefit 

plans 

Total 

accumulated 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

Stock 

acquisition 

rights 

Non- 

controlling 

interests 

Total 
net 

assets 

 (Millions of yen) 

Balance at 1st April, 2023 ¥ 3,871 ¥(1,145) ¥8,640 ¥1,332 ¥12,698 ¥58 ¥138 ¥149,959 

Changes during the year         

Cash dividends - - - - - - - (1,463) 

Profit attributable to 

shareholders of The Shikoku 

Bank, Ltd. - - - - - 

 

 

- - 7,285 

Acquisition of treasury stock - - - - - - - (1) 

Disposition of treasury stock - - - - - - - 52 

Reversal of land revaluation 

excess - - - - - - - 30 

Net changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity 

 

9,103 

 

769 

 

(30) 

 

2,538 12,381 

 

(17) 

 

2 

 

12,365 

Total changes during the year 9,103 769 (30) 2,538 12,381 (17) 2 18,269 

Balance at 31st March, 2024 ¥12,975 ¥(376) ¥8,610 ¥3,871 ¥25,079 ¥40 ¥140 ¥168,229 
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (continued) 
 

 Shareholders’ equity 

 

Common 
stock 

Capital 
surplus 

 
 

Retained 
earnings 

Treasury 
stock, 
at cost 

Total 
shareholders’ 

equity 

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 4) 

Balance at 1st April, 2023 $165,115 $64,062 $685,444 $(9,369) $  905,252 

Changes during the year      

Cash dividends - - (9,663) - (9,663) 

Profit attributable to shareholders of 

The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. - - 48,119 - 48,119 

Acquisition of treasury stock - - - (8) (8)  

Disposition of treasury stock - 18 - 332 350 

Reversal of land revaluation excess - - 201 - 201 

Net changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Total changes during the year - 18 38,657 324 38,999 

Balance at 31st March, 2024 $165,115 $64,080 $724,101 $(9,045) $944,251 

 

 Accumulated other comprehensive income    

 

Unrealized 

gains on 

securities 

Net 

deferred 

hedge 

losses 

Land 

revaluation 

excess 

Remeasurements 

of defined benefit 

plans 

Total 

accumulated 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

Stock 

acquisition 

rights 

Non- 

controlling 

interests 

Total 
net  

assets 

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 4) 

Balance at 1st April, 2023 $25,570 $ (7,569) $57,067 $ 8,802 $83,870 $383 $917 $990,422 

Changes during the year         

Cash dividends - - - - - - - (9,663) 

Profit attributable to 

shareholders of The Shikoku 

Bank, Ltd. - - - - - 

 

 

- - 48,119 

Acquisition of treasury stock - - - - - - - (8)  

Disposition of treasury stock - - - - - - - 350 

Reversal of land revaluation 

excess - - - - - - - 201 

Net changes in items other than 

shareholders’ equity 60,125 5,083 (201) 16,765 81,772 (118) 13 81,667 

Total changes during the year 60,125 5,083 (201) 16,765 81,772 (118) 13 120,666 

Balance at 31st March, 2024 $85,695 $ (2,486) $56,866 $25,567 $165,642 $265 $930 $1,111,088 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
 

 Year ended 31st March, 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 
U.S. dollars) 

(Note 4) 
Cash flows from operating activities    
Profit before income taxes ¥  7,891 ¥  9,288 $ 61,346 
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income taxes to net cash used in 

operating activities:    
Depreciation 2,124 1,910 12,619 
Impairment loss 66 63 420 
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates (113) (88) (582) 
Reserve for possible loan losses 356 22 148 
Net defined benefit asset (1,639) (4,276) (28,247) 
Net defined benefit liability 1 0 6 
Reserve for retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors 2 (0) (5) 
Reserve for reimbursement of deposits (121) (103) (685) 
Accrued interest and dividend income (30,728) (34,123) (225,371) 
Accrued interest expenses 1,790 1,282 8,468 
(Gains) losses on investment securities – net 3,322 2,584 17,070 
(Gains) losses on money held in trust (113) 92 612 
Foreign exchange (gains) losses – net (1) - - 
(Gains) losses on disposal of fixed assets (54) (32) (215) 
Net (increase) decrease in loans (67,356) (106,210) (701,478) 
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 16,236 (47,954) (316,721) 
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (exclusive of subordinated loans) (272,818) 63,021 416,228 
Net (increase) decrease in due from banks (exclusive of the Bank of Japan) 324 5,746 37,952 
Net (increase) decrease in call loans and others 778 1,130 7,470 
Net (increase) decrease in trading account securities (17) 26 173 
Net increase (decrease) in call money and others (13,487) - - 
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions (23,455) (33,804) (223,268) 
Net (increase) decrease in foreign exchange (assets) (988) 5,774 38,140 
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchange (liabilities) (2,635) 38 258 
Interest and dividends received 28,599 32,435 214,221 
Interest paid (1,677) (1,391) (9,190) 
Other – net (8,344) 20,097 132,738 

Subtotal (362,057) (84,470) (557,893) 
Income taxes paid (177) (1,157) (7,645) 

Net cash used in operating activities (362,234) (85,628) (565,538) 
Cash flows from investing activities    
Purchases of securities (505,313) (676,457) (4,467,720) 
Proceeds from sales of securities 589,667 553,950 3,658,611 
Proceeds from redemption of securities 49,017 29,442 194,453 
Payments for money held in trust (19) (1,000) (6,604) 
Purchases of tangible fixed assets (1,324) (998) (6,595) 
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 245 194 1,287 
Purchases of intangible fixed assets (477) (996) (6,583) 
Payments for asset retirement obligations (6) - - 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 131,788 (95,865) (633,151) 

Cash flows from financing activities    
Repayment of subordinated loans - (5,000) (33,023) 
Dividends paid (1,770) (1,463) (9,667) 
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (1) (1) (7) 
Purchases of treasury stock (1) (1) (8) 
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 36 34 231 
Repayment of lease obligations (125) (59) (392) 

Net cash used in financing activities (1,861) (6,490) (42,866) 
Effect of currency rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1 - - 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (232,306) (187,983) (1,241,555) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 635,358 403,051 2,661,988 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 25) ¥403,051 ¥215,067 $1,420,433 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries 

 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

a. Basis of Presentation 

 

 The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. (the 

“Bank”) and consolidated subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) have been prepared 

from the accounts maintained by the Bank in accordance with the provisions set forth in 

the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, the Banking Law of Japan and other 

applicable rules and regulations and in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure 

requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

 

 In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which 

is not required under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan but is presented 

herein as additional information. 

 

 Certain items have been reclassified from the original consolidated financial statements 

filed with the Prime Minister as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange 

Law for the convenience of readers outside Japan. 

 

b. Consolidation 

 

 The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank 

and its following four significant subsidiaries. 

 

The Shigin Agency Company Limited 

The Shikoku Guarantee Company Limited  

The Shigin Computer Service Company Limited 

Shigin Regional Economic Research Institute Incorporated 

 

Two unconsolidated subsidiaries are excluded from the scope of consolidation because 

it is deemed that they have insignificant effect on the consolidated financial statements 

in terms of total assets, ordinary income, profit, and retained earnings when excluded 

from the scope of consolidation. All material intercompany balances and transactions 

are eliminated in consolidation. Difference between the cost of investments in the 

consolidated subsidiaries and the corresponding net assets at the acquisition date of the 

equity is charged to income as incurred. 

 

The Shigin Leasing Company Limited is accounted for by the equity method and is 

included in securities in the balance sheets. 

 

Two subsidiaries and two affiliates, of which two are limited partnerships, are not 

accounted for by the equity method and carried at cost since profit and retained earnings 

of these subsidiary and affiliates are not significant and would not have a material impact 

on the consolidated financial statements of the Bank. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

  

c. Trading Account Securities 

 

 Trading securities purchased for trading purpose are stated at market value at the year 

end and cost is determined by the moving average method.  

 

d. Securities 

 

 Securities other than trading account securities are classified into three categories: held-

to-maturity bonds, equity of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, or available-for-

sale securities. Held-to-maturity bonds are carried at amortized cost. Equity of 

unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates is stated at cost determined by the moving 

average method except for those accounted for by the equity method. Available-for-sale 

securities are generally carried at fair value with unrealized holding gain or loss, net of 

the applicable income taxes, recorded as a component of shareholders’ equity; however, 

shares, etc. that do not have a market price are carried at cost determined by the moving 

average method. 

 

Securities managed as assets held in unconsolidated money trusts whose primary 

purpose is investments in securities are carried at fair value. 

 

e. Derivatives 

 

 Derivatives are stated at fair value. 

 

f. Method of Depreciation and Amortization 

 

(i) Tangible fixed assets (Except for leased assets) 

 

The Bank’s tangible fixed assets, including improvements, are stated at cost less 

accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is mainly computed by the declining-

balance method based on the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, except 

for buildings(excluding facilities attached to buildings) acquired on or after 1st April, 

1998 as well as facilities attached to buildings and structures acquired on and after 

1st April, 2016 which are depreciated by the straight-line method.   

 The estimated useful lives principally applied are as follows: 

 

Buildings 19 years to 50 years 

Other 5 years to 15 years 

 

(ii) Intangible fixed assets (Except for leased assets) 

 

 Cost of intangible fixed assets obtained or developed for internal use is capitalized 

and amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of five 

years. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

f. Method of Depreciation and Amortization (continued) 

 

(iii) Leased assets 

 

 Leased assets in tangible fixed assets capitalized under finance leases that do not 

transfer ownership are depreciated to a residual value of zero by the straight-line 

method over the contract term. 
 
g. Foreign Currency Translation 

 

 Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into yen at the 

exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. 
 
As regards translation differences related to bonds among available-for-sale securities 
denominated in foreign currencies, those related to changes in fair value in original 
foreign currencies are treated as valuation differences, and the remainder is treated as 
gains or losses from foreign exchange transactions. 

 
h. Reserve for Possible Loan Losses 
 
 The reserve for possible loan losses is provided in accordance with the internal policies 

and guidelines for write-offs and reserves for possible loan losses. 
 
 The reserve for loans to borrowers who are classified as substantially bankrupt or who 

are bankrupt in a legal sense is provided at 100% of the amount remaining after write-

offs and deduction of expected collection from the disposal of collateral and from 

guarantees. 
 
 In addition, a reserve is provided for loans to borrowers who, although not actually 

bankrupt in a legal sense, are experiencing serious financial difficulties and whose failure 

is imminent. In such cases, the reserve is provided at the amount deemed necessary based 

on the borrower’s capability of repayment after deduction of expected collection from 

the disposal of collateral and from guarantees. 
 

A reserve is also provided for certain large loans who have restructured loans or loans 

past due for three months or more at the amount of difference between the carrying value 

and the estimated future cash flows discounted by the original contractual interest rates 

if the future cash flows from the repayment of principal and interest is in reasonably 

estimated. 
 
 For all other loans, a reserve is provided as estimated loss amounts mainly for future one 

year or three years by each group based on the combination of borrower classification, 

credit rating, industry, and region. The estimated loss amounts are calculated based on 

the average of the past probability of default obtained from the actual default results for 

one year or three years, taking into account the long-term perspective, using the 

estimated loss ratio calculated by considering necessary adjustments.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
h. Reserve for Possible Loan Losses (continued) 
 
 The above classification of borrowers and the calculation of the provision for the 

possible loan losses are based on the result of self-assessment of asset, which is a 

comprehensive review process of Bank’s asset quality performed by the relevant 

department in accordance with the internal guidelines for self-assessment and is 

independently reviewed by the internal audit unit.  
 
 For loans to bankrupt and substantially bankrupt borrowers, amounts deemed 

uncollectible, which are calculated after deduction of expected collection from the 

disposal of collateral and from guarantees, are written off. The amounts written off for 

the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were ¥6,270 million and ¥6,366 million 

(U.S.$42,046 thousand), respectively. 

 

Reserve for possible loan losses of the consolidated subsidiaries are provided at the 

amount deemed necessary for general receivables based on the past credit loss history, 

and at the amount deemed uncollectable for certain types of receivables such as doubtful 

receivables based on assessments of individual receivables. 

 

i. Reserve for Retirement Benefits for Directors and Corporate Auditors of the Bank’s 

Consolidated Subsidiaries 
 
 Reserve for retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors of its consolidated 

subsidiaries is provided at the amount which would be required to be paid in accordance 

with the internal rules if they retired at the balance sheet date. 

 

j. Reserve for Reimbursement of Deposits 
 
 Reserve for reimbursement of deposits is provided at an estimate of the future payments 

for the reimbursement claims from the customers whose deposit accounts had been 

derecognized and credited from liability to income. 

 

k. Retirement Benefit Plans 

 

The benefit formula method is used to attribute expected benefits to the periods through 

the end of the fiscal year in calculating projected benefit obligation. 

 

Actuarial gain or loss is amortized from the next year of its occurrence primarily by the 

straight-line method over a certain period (10 years) that is shorter than the average 

remaining service years of the eligible employees. 

 

Consolidated subsidiaries apply the simplified method, which assumes the projected 

benefit obligation to be equal to the benefits payable assuming the voluntary retirement 

of all employees at fiscal year-end, in computing net defined benefit liability and 

severance benefit expenses. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

l. Significant revenue and expenses 
 
 Revenue from contracts with customers is recorded when control of promised goods or 

services is transferred to customers. The recorded amount of revenue from contracts with 

customers is calculated based on the amount expected to be received in exchange for the 

goods or services. Credit card merchant commissions are recognized as the amount 

expected to be collected for third parties, net of the amount of points granted and 

expected to be used in the future. 

 

m. Income Taxes 
 
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between 

financial reporting and tax basis of the assets and liabilities and are measured using the 

enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the year when the temporary 

differences are expected to reverse. 

 

n. Earnings per Share 
 
 Earnings per share was computed based on the profit attributable to common 

shareholders of The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. and the average number of shares of common 

stock outstanding during the year. 

 

o. Hedge Accounting 
 

(i) Hedges of interest rate risk 
 
 The Bank adopts the deferred method of hedge accounting for interest rate risk 

arising from financial assets and liabilities. The Bank identifies hedging relationship 

on an individual transaction basis by designating hedging interest rate swaps as 

hedges of certain securities in accordance with its policy for calculating fair value 

of financial instruments and hedge accounting. 
 
 The Bank centralizes management of hedged items and corresponding hedging 

instruments and assesses hedge effectiveness by examining whether interest rate 

risk of the relevant hedged items are offset by the relevant hedging transactions or 

not. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 

o. Hedge Accounting (continued) 

 

(ii) Hedges of foreign exchange risk 
 
 The Bank adopts the standard treatment under the Japanese Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants (“JICPA”) Industry Committee Practical Guidelines No. 25 

“Accounting and Auditing Treatment for Accounting for Foreign Currency 

Transaction in Banking Industry,” issued on 8th October, 2020, for foreign 

exchange risks arising from financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 

currencies. Under that treatment, the Bank applies the deferred method of hedge 

accounting. The Bank enters into currency swaps and foreign exchange swaps to 

mitigate the foreign exchange risks arising from financial assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies and assesses, both at inception of the hedge and 

on an ongoing basis, whether these derivatives are highly effective in offsetting 

changes in cash flows of the hedged items (financial assets and liabilities). Hedge 

effectiveness is assessed by ensuring that the foreign currency position of the hedged 

items exceeds the foreign currency position of the hedging instruments that offsets 

foreign exchange risk of the foreign currency-denominated monetary claims 

designated as the hedged items.  

 

p. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
 Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows consists of cash 

and deposits with the Bank of Japan included in “Cash and due from banks” on the 

consolidated balance sheets. 

 

q. Accounting Policies and Procedures Adopted When Requirements Under the Relating 

Accounting Standards Are Not Clearly Defined 

 

Gains or losses on cancellation and redemption of investment trusts (excluding listed 

investment trusts) are recorded in “Interest and dividends on securities” in the case of 

gains, and in “Losses on redemption of bonds” in “Other operating expenses” in the case 

of losses, for each investment trust issue. 

 

Gains on cancellation and redemption of investment trusts (excluding listed investment 

trusts) of ¥1,936 million and ¥238 million (U.S.$1,576 thousand) were recorded in 

“Interest and dividends on securities” and losses on cancellation and redemption of 

investment trusts (excluding listed investment trusts) of ¥2,388 million and ¥1,646 

million (U.S.$10,874 thousand) were recorded in “Losses on redemption of bonds” for 

the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024, respectively.  
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2.  Significant Accounting Estimates 

 

Reserve for Possible Loan Losses 

 

(1) Carrying amount in the current year financial statements 

 

The Bank’s carrying amount of reserve for possible loan losses as of 31st March, 2023 and 

2024 were ¥14,465 million and ¥14,600 million (U.S.$96,432 thousand), respectively. 

 

(2) Information on the nature of significant accounting estimates for identified items 

 

(i)  Method of calculation 

 The Bank conducts self-assessment, which is a process where financial institutions 

examine their own assets individually and classify them according to the degree of 

risk of uncollection or risk of impairment of value, and records reserve for possible 

loan losses in accordance with predetermined guidelines for write-offs and 

provisions. See Note 1 “h. Reserve for Possible Loan Losses for specific details of 

borrower classification.” 

 

(ii)  Key assumptions  

 A key assumption is made for the “outlook for the future performance of the 

borrowers in determining the borrower classification” which is determined by 

individually evaluating each borrower’s ability to earn income and other factors. For  

certain borrowers, the rationale for and feasibility of the business improvement plans, 

which detail the outlook for the future performance, or the prospect of formulating 

such plans, may be a more important factor in the judgment. 

 

With regard to the impact on individual borrowers of changes in the external 

environment, such as surging natural resource prices, the Bank assesses the current 

impact and, if necessary, reflects the impact in its outlook for the future performance 

to determine the borrower classification. 

 

(iii) Effects on the next year consolidated financial statements 

If the assumption used in the initial estimates changes due to changes in the 

performance of individual borrowers or other factors, this may have a significant 

impact on the reserve for possible loan losses in the next year financial statements.  
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3.  Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective 

 

“Accounting Standard for Current Income Taxes” (ASBJ Statement No. 27, issued on 28th 

October, 2022) 

“Accounting Standard for Presentation of Comprehensive Income” (ASBJ Statement No. 25, 

issued on 28th October, 2022) 

“Guidance on Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting” (ASBJ Guidance No. 28, 

issued on 28th October, 2022) 

 

(1)  Summary 

These establish the classification of income taxes to be recorded when other 

comprehensive income is taxed and the treatment of tax effects on sales of shares of 

subsidiaries and other securities when the group taxation regime is applied. 

 

(2)  Effective date 

The Group expects to adopt the new standards and guidance effective the beginning of 

the year ending 31st March, 2025. 

 

(3)  Effects of adopting the standards and guidance 

There is no impact of adopting the new standards and guidance on the next year 

consolidated financial statements. 

 

 

4. Yen and U.S. Dollar Amounts 

 

The Bank maintains its accounting records in yen. The yen amounts included in the 

accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated in millions of yen, omitting 

amounts of less than one million yen. Therefore, the totals or subtotals presented in the 

accompanying consolidated financial statements do not necessarily add up to the sum of the 

respective account balances. 

 

The U.S. dollar amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements 

represent the arithmetic results of translating yen into U.S. dollars at ¥151.41 = U.S.$1.00, 

the approximate exchange rate in effect on 31st March, 2024. The inclusion of the U.S. dollar 

amounts is solely for convenience and is not intended to imply that assets and liabilities 

originating in yen have been or could be readily converted, realized or settled in U.S. dollars 

at the above or any other rate. 
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5. Loans and Bills Discounted 

 

(1) Loans under the Banking Act and the Act on Emergency Measures for the Revitalization 

of Financial Functions are as follows. Loans include corporate bonds in “securities” in 

the consolidated balance sheets (limited to those for which redemption of the principal 

and payment of interest is guaranteed in whole or in part, and for which the bonds were 

issued through private placement of securities (Article 2, Paragraph 3 of the Financial 

Instruments and Exchange Act), loans and bills discounted, foreign exchange assets, 

accrued interest and suspense payments in “Other assets,” and customers’ liabilities for 

acceptances and guarantees and the securities in the case of loan of securities (limited to 

those under a loan-for-use or lease agreement) that are disclosed in notes. 

 
 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of  
U.S. dollars) 

Bankrupt or quasi-bankrupt loans ¥ 3,964 ¥ 4,771 $ 31,516 
Doubtful loans 40,861 42,969 283,797 
Loans past due for three months or more – – – 
Restructured loans 5,714 5,605 37,024 

Total ¥50,540 ¥53,347 $352,337 

 

Bankrupt or quasi-bankrupt loans mean loans to borrowers with failed business status 

due to the grounds such as commencement of bankruptcy proceedings, commencement 

of reorganization proceedings, or commencement of rehabilitation proceedings, and any 

other type of claims equivalent thereto. 

 

Doubtful loans mean loans whose borrowers are not yet in the status of failure in business 

although such borrowers’ financial status and business performance are worsening, and 

for which it is unlikely that the principal or interest is collected in accordance with the 

contract, excluding bankrupt or quasi-bankrupt loans. 

 

Loans past due for three months or more mean loans for which payments of principal or 

interest has been delayed for three months or more from the date when they are due, 

excluding bankrupt or quasi-bankrupt loans and doubtful loans. 

 

Restructured loans mean loans which have been restructured to support business 

rehabilitation of borrowers who are encountering financial difficulties, with the intention 

of ensuring recovery of the loans by providing easier repayment terms for the borrowers 

(such as by reducing the rate of interest or by providing a grace period for the payment 

of principal/interest, etc.), excluding bankrupt or quasi-bankrupt loans, doubtful loans 

and the loans past due for three months or more. 

 

The above loan amounts are before deduction of reserve for possible loan losses. 
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5. Loans and Bills Discounted (continued) 

 

(2) Bills discounted are accounted for as finance transactions in accordance with the JICPA 

Industry Committee Practical Guidelines No. 24, issued on 17th March, 2022. The Bank 

has rights to sell or pledge bank acceptances bought, commercial bills discounted, 

documentary bills and foreign exchanges bought without restrictions. The face value at 

31st March, 2023 and 2024 totalled ¥5,387 million and ¥5,883 million (U.S.$38,859 

thousand), respectively. 

 

 

6. Pledged Assets 

 

Assets pledged as collateral at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Assets pledged as collateral:    

Securities ¥121,303 ¥189,778 $1,253,407 

Total ¥121,303 ¥189,778 $1,253,407 

    

Liabilities secured by the above assets:    

Deposits ¥13,241 ¥12,966 $85,637 

Payables under securities lending 

transactions 

 

33,874 

 

69 461 

Borrowed money 1,567 65,000 429,298 

 

In addition, securities of ¥201 million and ¥27,025 million (U.S.$178,494 thousand) at 31st 

March, 2023 and 2024, respectively, were pledged as collateral principally to clearing 

organizations for exchange transactions and futures transactions. 

 

Included in other assets were guarantee deposits of ¥569 million and ¥563 million 

(U.S.$3,724 thousand), deposits for futures transactions of ¥14 million and ¥16 million 

(U.S.$111 thousand), cash collateral paid for financial instruments of ¥1,644 million and 

¥1,405 million (U.S.$9,279 thousand), and deposit for central counterparty of ¥50,000 

million and ¥15,000 million (U.S.$99,069 thousand) at 31st March, 2023 and 2024, 

respectively. 
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7. Loan Commitments 

 

Overdraft agreements and loan commitments are agreements under which the Bank and its 

consolidated subsidiaries are obliged to extend loans up to a prearranged limit unless the 

customer is in breach of contract. The loan commitments not yet drawn down at 31st March, 

2023 and 2024 totalled ¥559,982 million and ¥565,969 million (U.S.$3,737,990 thousand), 

respectively, of which ¥534,633 million and ¥535,667 million (U.S.$3,537,859 thousand), 

respectively, related to agreements whose contractual terms were for one year or less or 

which were unconditionally cancellable at any time. 

 

As the majority of these agreements expire without the right to extend the loans being 

exercised, the undrawn commitment balance does not affect the future cash flows of the Bank 

or of its consolidated subsidiaries. These agreements usually include provisions which 

stipulate that the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries have the right either to refuse the 

execution of the loans or to reduce the contractual commitments when there is a change in 

the borrower’s financial condition, or when additional assurance of the financial soundness 

and creditworthiness of a borrower is necessary, or when other unforeseen circumstances 

arise. 

 

The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries take various measures to protect their credit. Such 

measures include obtaining real estate or securities as collateral at the time of entering into 

the agreement, monitoring a customer’s business on a regular basis in accordance with 

established internal procedures, and amending the loan commitment agreements when 

necessary. 

 

 

8. Land Revaluation Excess 

 

Pursuant to the “Law Concerning the Revaluation of Land” (the “Law”), land used for 

business operations was revalued at fair value at 31st March, 1998. Net unrealized gain was 

classified in a separate component of stockholders’ equity, net of applicable income taxes, as 

“Land revaluation excess” and in liabilities as “Deferred income tax liability for land 

revaluation excess” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Under the Law, once 

the Bank revalued the land, it is not permitted to revalue the land. Such unrealized revaluation 

loss as of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were ¥9,481 million and ¥9,312 million (U.S.$61,508 

thousand), respectively. 

 

9. Tangible Fixed Assets  

 

Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were 

¥29,348 million and ¥29,775 million (U.S.$196,654 thousand), respectively. 

 

Balance of advanced depreciation of tangible fixed assets as of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

were ¥3,036 million and ¥2,975 million (U.S.$19,654 thousand), respectively. There was no 

advanced depreciation for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024. 

 

 

10. Borrowed Money 

 

At 31st March, 2023 and 2024, borrowed money included borrowings of ¥5,000 million and 

nil subordinate to all other debts of the Bank. 
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11. Guarantee Obligations for Corporate Bonds Acquired 

 

The amount of guarantee obligations for privately placed corporate bonds the Bank owns as 

of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were ¥39,025 million and ¥43,662 million (U.S.$288,373 

thousand), respectively. 

 

 

12. Net Assets 

 

The Bank is subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the “Act”) and the Banking Law. The 

Act requires that at least 50% of the paid-in capital of new share issues be transferred to the 

“Common stock” account and the amount not exceeding 50% of the paid-in capital be 

included in capital surplus as “Additional paid-in capital.” 
 
Under the Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the year in addition to the 
year-end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. Interim dividends may be 
paid at any time during the year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if the company 
has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. 
 
The Act provides certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase 
of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the 
shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained at no less than 
¥3 million. 
 
The Banking Law requires that an amount equal to 20% of dividends be appropriated as a 
legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as capital reserve (a component of capital 
surplus) depending on the equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until 
the total of the aggregate amount of legal reserve and capital reserve equals 100% of capital 
stock. 
 
Under the Act, the total amount of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be 
reversed without limitation. The Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve, 
additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be transferred 
among the accounts under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders. 
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12. Net Assets (continued) 
 
The changes in the number of issued shares of common stock and treasury stock during the 
years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 
 
 Number of shares (in thousands) 
 1st April, 

2023 
Increase Decrease 31st March, 

2024 
Outstanding shares issued:     

Common stock 42,900 ― ― 42,900 
Treasury stock:     

Common stock 1,245 1 54 1,192 
 
The increase in treasury stock is due to acquisition of shares less than one unit. 
 
The decrease in treasury stock is due to allotment of restricted stock, exercise of stock 
acquisition rights and responding to call options of shares of less than one unit by 39 thousand 
shares, 15 thousand shares and 0 thousand shares, respectively. 
 
 
 Number of shares (in thousands) 
 1st April, 

2022 
Increase Decrease 31st March, 

2023 
Outstanding shares issued:     

Common stock 42,900 ― ― 42,900 
Treasury stock:     

Common stock 1,295 2 53 1,245 
 
The increase in treasury stock is due to gratis acquisition of restricted stock and acquisition 
of shares less than one unit by 1 thousand shares and 1 thousand shares, respectively. 
 
The decrease in treasury stock is due to allotment of restricted stock, exercise of stock 
acquisition rights and responding to call options of shares of less than one unit by 43 thousand 
shares, 9 thousand shares and 0 thousand shares, respectively. 
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12. Net Assets (continued) 

 

Stock acquisition rights and the Bank’s own stock acquisition rights as of 31st March, 2023 

and 2024 were as follows: 

 

Classification 

Detail of 

stock 

acquisition 

rights 

Class of 
shares 

issued or 
transferred 

upon 
exercise of 

stock 
acquisition 

rights 

Number of shares issued or transferred upon 

exercise of stock acquisition rights 

 (Shares) 

Balance at 31st March, 

2024 

1st 

April, 

2023 

Increase Decrease 

31st 

March, 

2024 
(Millions 

of yen) 

 

(Thousands 

of U.S. 

dollars) 

The Bank 

Stock 
acquisition 

rights 
granted as 

stock 
options ― ¥40 $265 

Total ― ¥40 $265 

 

Classification 

Detail of 
stock 

acquisition 
rights 

Class of 
shares 

issued or 
transferred 

upon 
exercise of 

stock 
acquisition 

rights 

Number of shares issued or transferred upon 
exercise of stock acquisition rights 

 (Shares) 

Balance at 

31st 

March, 

2023 

1st 
April, 
2022 

Increase Decrease 
31st 

March, 
2023 

(Millions 

of yen) 

 

The Bank 

Stock 
acquisition 

rights 
granted as 

stock 
options ― ¥58 

Total ― ¥58 

 

Year ended 31st March, 2024 

The following cash dividend payments were approved during the year: 

 

General shareholders’ meeting held on 29th June, 2023: 

 

Total amount 

Millions of yen 

(Thousands of U.S. 

dollars) 

Per share 

amount 

Yen 

 (U.S. 

dollars) 

Dividend 

record date 

Effective 

date 

Common stock ¥731 million 

($4,829 thousand) 

¥17.50 

($0.12) 

31st March, 

2023 

30th June, 

2023 

 

Board of Directors meeting held on 10th November, 2023: 

 Total amount 

Millions of yen 

(Thousands of U.S. 

dollars) 

Per share 

amount 

Yen 

(U.S. dollars) 

Dividend  

record date 

Effective 

date 

Common stock ¥732 million 

($4,835 thousand) 

¥17.50 

($0.12) 

30th 

September, 

2023 

6th 

December, 

2023 
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12. Net Assets (continued) 

 

Year ended 31st March, 2023 

The following cash dividend payments were approved during the year: 

 

General shareholders’ meeting held on 29th June, 2022: 

 

Total amount 

Millions of yen 

Per share 

amount 

Yen 

Dividend 

record date 

Effective 

date 

Common stock ¥1,043 million ¥25.00 

 

31st March, 

2022 

30th June, 

2022 

 

Board of Directors meeting held on 11th November, 2022: 

 

Total amount 

Millions of yen 

Per share 

amount 

Yen 

Dividend  

record date 

Effective 

date 

Common stock ¥731 million ¥17.50 30th 

September, 

2022 

2nd 

December, 

2022 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures 

 

1. General information 

 

a) Policy for financial instruments 

 

 The Group operates mainly in Shikoku especially Kochi prefecture, engaging in 

financial service business with its focus on banking. The Group raises funds mostly 

by taking deposits from local small and mid-sized enterprises and individuals and 

through fund investments mostly by originating loans to local small and mid-sized 

enterprises and individuals and investing in securities, primarily bonds. 

 

Since these financial assets and liabilities are primarily subject to interest rate 

fluctuation risk, the Group implements comprehensive asset and liability 

management (ALM) to prevent adverse effects from interest rate fluctuations, and 

as part of such management, the Group conducts derivative transactions. 

 

b) Content of financial instruments and their risks 

 

• Nature of financial instruments 

 

 The financial assets held by the Group consist primarily of loans and securities. 

The loans primarily consist of those extended to enterprises and individuals in 

Japan, while the securities include national government bonds, local 

government bonds, corporate bonds, stocks and other securities.  

 

The financial liabilities of the Group primarily consist of deposits taken from 

enterprises and individuals in Japan. 

 

 The Group engages in derivative transactions including interest rate swaps, 

currency swaps, and forward foreign exchange contracts, in order to hedge risks 

arising from the Group’s assets and liabilities. 

 

• Risks of financial instruments 

 

 Credit risk represents risk of loss from a financial asset becoming a 

nonperforming asset due to poor performance of a debtor of a loan or an issuer 

of a security instrument. The Group’s loans and securities are widely spread 

across different types of industry and enterprises, and there is no significant 

concentration. 

 

 Market risk encompasses interest rate risk that represents risk of a decrease in 

financial profit due to fluctuation of interest rates. It also encompasses price 

fluctuation risk that represents risk of loss from fluctuation of bond or stock 

prices. The Bank holds little foreign exchange risk. 

 

 Liquidity risk consists of funding liquidity risk representing risk that an entity 

faces the difficulty in funding when necessary and market liquidity risk 

representing risk that an entity cannot conduct normal trading due to market 

disorder. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

 The Group’s derivative transactions are only for hedging purposes, and the risks 

are estimated to be limited. 

 

c) Risk management structure for financial instruments 

 

• Credit risk management 

 

The Bank has established the Credit Risk Management Rules to control credit 

risk appropriately through individual credit management and credit portfolio 

management, and to ensure the soundness and appropriateness of operations by 

securing appropriate revenue commensurate with risk. 

 

In credit risk management, the credit risk management department is 

responsible for developing credit rating systems, quantifying credit risk, and 

managing the credit portfolio for the purpose of assessing the risk of loans 

objectively, and the credit screening department, which is independent of the 

credit risk management and sales departments, is responsible for screening and 

managing individual cases and borrower ratings. 

 

In addition, the credit risk management department and the credit screening 

department periodically report on the status of credit risk to the Asset Liability 

Management Committee and other committees, and the Asset Liability 

Management Committee assesses the status of credit risk and deliberates on 

adjustments to asset and liability strategies. 

 

• Market risk management 

 

The Bank has established the Market Risk Management Principles and Market 

Risk Management Rules, and has developed a system to appropriately manage 

market risk, with the basic stance of securing stable revenue by assuming a 

certain amount of manageable risk and improving the soundness of assets. 

 

The market risk management system is designed to ensure effective checks and 

balances by establishing front offices for executing market transactions, back 

offices for managing the administration of market transactions, and middle 

offices for managing market risks separately in the departments in charge of 

markets. 

 

In addition, the Bank has established a market risk management control 

department, which is independent of the market and sales departments, to 

supervise and manage overall market risk. 

 

The market risk management control department measures, analyses, and 

evaluates market risks by identifying risks to be managed based on the scale 

and characteristics of the risks faced by the Bank. The department also reports 

to the Asset Liability Management Committee on the status of market risk, the 

status of compliance with limits, and the results of assessments such as stress 

tests under the assumption of significant market fluctuations, and deliberates on 

asset and liability strategies and measures to control market risk. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

Quantitative information on market risk management 

 

The Bank employs Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) to control major market risk, such 

as interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk. Financial instruments that are 

affected by interest rate risk are bonds included in securities, loans and deposits, 

and those which are affected by price risk are stocks and investment trusts 

included in securities. The Bank employs the variance and covariance method, 

(the 6 month holding period, the 99% confidence interval and the 1 year 

observation period) and verifies the effectiveness of the VaR by periodical back 

testing. The VaR, as at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 was ¥29,918 million and 

¥45,541 million (U.S.$300,780 thousand), respectively, which comprises 

interest rate risk of ¥19,235 million and ¥29,689 million (U.S.$196,086 

thousand), respectively, and price fluctuation risk of ¥10,682 million and 

¥15,851 million (U.S.$104,694 thousand), respectively. The VaR represents the 

risk volume that is calculated statistically based on the probabilities derived 

from the past market movements. Accordingly, under extremely volatile market 

conditions, risk may be underestimated. 

 

• Management of liquidity risk related to fund raising 

 

The Bank manages its liquidity risk by diversifying its funding sources and 

adjusting the balance of long and short-term funding in consideration of market 

conditions. The Bank also strives to secure liquidity by holding highly liquid 

assets such as government bonds to ensure appropriate and stable cash 

management. 

 

In addition, the Bank has formulated measures to deal with liquidity crises in 

accordance with the degree of tightness of cash flow, and has established a 

system to respond promptly and appropriately in the event of unforeseen 

circumstances. 

 

d) Supplementary explanation about fair value of financial instruments 

 

 Since certain assumptions are used in calculating the fair value of financial 

instruments, the result of such calculation may vary if different assumptions are 

used. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued)  

 

2. Fair value of financial instruments 

 

 The carrying value, the fair value and the difference as of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

are summarized in the following table. Shares, etc. that do not have a market price and 

investments in partnership are not included in the following table (see *1). Cash and due 

from banks, call loans and bills purchased, debt purchased, foreign exchange (assets and 

liabilities), and payables under securities lending transactions are mainly settled in a 

short period of time and therefore are not stated because their fair value approximates 

their carrying value. 

 

At 31st March, 2024 

Carrying 

value 

Fair 

value Difference 

 (Millions of yen) 

Money held in trust  ¥ 2,906  ¥ 2,906  ¥ – 

Securities:    

Available-for-sale securities (*1) 888,152 888,152 – 

Loans and bills discounted 2,085,795   

Reserve for possible loan losses (*2) (15,131)   

 2,070,663 2,066,537 (4,126) 

Total assets  ¥ 2,961,722  ¥ 2,957,596  ¥ (4,126) 

Deposits  ¥ 3,040,057 ¥  3,040,112  ¥ 55 

Borrowed money 66,380 66,379 (0) 

Total liabilities 
 ¥ 3,106,437  ¥ 3,106,492  ¥ 54 

Derivative transactions (*3)    

To which hedge accounting is not 

applied  ¥ (1,602)  ¥ (1,602)  ¥ – 

To which hedge accounting is 

applied (*4) (541) (541) – 

Total derivative transactions  ¥ (2,143)  ¥ (2,143)  ¥ – 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued)  

 

 

At 31st March, 2024 

Carrying 

value 

Fair 

value Difference 

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Money held in trust  $ 19,199  $ 19,199  $ – 

Securities:    

Available-for-sale securities (*1) 5,865,875 5,865,875 – 

Loans and bills discounted 13,775,808   

Reserve for possible loan losses (*2) (99,940)   

 13,675,868 13,648,617 (27,251) 

Total assets  $ 19,560,942  $ 19,533,691  $(27,251) 

Deposits  $ 20,078,311  $ 20,078,677  $ 366 

Borrowed money 438,414 438,409 (5) 

Total liabilities 
 $ 20,516,725  $ 20,517,086  $ 361 

Derivative transactions (*3)    

To which hedge accounting is not 

applied  $ (10,585)  $ (10,585)  $ – 

To which hedge accounting is 

applied (*4) (3,574) (3,574) – 

Total derivative transactions  $ (14,159)  $ (14,159)  $ – 

 

(*1) Available-for-sale securities include investment trusts to which the treatment in 

Paragraph 24-9 of “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value 

Measurement” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31, issued on 17th June, 2021) is applied to deem 

the net asset value to be the fair value.  

(*2) General and specific reserves for possible loan losses are deducted from the related 

loans.  

(*3) Derivative transactions include all derivatives recorded in other assets and other 

liabilities. Assets and liabilities arising from derivative transactions are shown on a net 

basis. 

(*4) Interest rate swaps, etc., designated as hedging instruments to fix the cash flows of 

securities and other items that are the hedged items, are mainly accounted for as 

deferred hedges. “Revised Practical Solution on the Treatment of Hedge Accounting 

for Financial Instruments that Reference LIBOR” (PITF No.40, issued on 17th March, 

2022) is applied to these hedging relationships. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued)  

 

 

At 31st March, 2023 

Carrying 

value 

Fair 

value Difference 

 (Millions of yen) 

Trading account securities:    

Trading securities  ¥ 26  ¥ 26  ¥ – 

Money held in trust 2,000 2,000 – 

Securities:    

Available-for-sale securities (*1) 787,041 787,041 – 

Loans and bills discounted 1,979,584   

Reserve for possible loan losses (*2) (15,103)   

 1,964,480 1,963,985 (495) 

Total assets  ¥ 2,753,547  ¥ 2,753,052  ¥  (495) 

Deposits  ¥ 3,088,011 ¥  3,088,039  ¥ 27 

Borrowed money 8,359 8,360 1 

Total liabilities 
 ¥ 3,096,370  ¥ 3,096,399  ¥ 28 

Derivative transactions (*3)    

To which hedge accounting is not 

applied  ¥ (1,688)  ¥ (1,688)  ¥ – 

To which hedge accounting is 

applied (*4) (1,647) (1,647) – 

Total derivative transactions  ¥ (3,336)  ¥ (3,336)  ¥ – 

 

(*1) Available-for-sale securities include investment trusts to which the treatment in 

Paragraph 24-9 of “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value 

Measurement” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31, issued on 17th June, 2021) is applied to deem 

the net asset value to be the fair value.  

(*2) General and specific reserves for possible loan losses are deducted from the related 

loans.  

(*3) Derivative transactions include all derivatives recorded in other assets and other 

liabilities. Assets and liabilities arising from derivative transactions are shown on a net 

basis. 

(*4) Interest rate swaps, etc., designated as hedging instruments to fix the cash flows of 

securities and other items that are the hedged items, are mainly accounted for as 

deferred hedges. “Revised Practical Solution on the Treatment of Hedge Accounting 

for Financial Instruments that Reference LIBOR” (PITF No.40, issued on 17th March, 

2022) is applied to these hedging relationships. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued)  

 

(Note 1) The carrying amounts of shares, etc. that do not have a market price and 

investments in partnership are summarized in the following table. These are not 

included in “Available-for-sale securities” as part of the fair value information of 

financial instruments. 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Shares, etc. that do not have  

a market price (*1)(*2) 

¥11,061 ¥11,300 $74,636 

Investments in partnership (*3) 11,028 12,770 84,346 

 

 (*1) Shares, etc. that do not have a market price include unlisted equity securities and 

are not subject to fair value disclosure in accordance with Paragraph 5 of the 

“Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial 

Instruments” (ASBJ Guidance No. 19, issued on 31th March, 2020). 

 (*2) There were no impairment losses on unlisted equity securities for the years ended 

31st March, 2023 and 2024. 

 

(*3) Investments in partnership are not subject to fair value disclosure in accordance 

with Paragraph 24-16 of the “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard 

for Fair Value Measurement” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31, issued on 17th June, 

2021). 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

(Note 2) Repayment schedule of monetary receivables and securities with contractual 

maturities 

At 31st March, 2024 
Due in one 
year or less 

Due after 
one year 
through 

three years 

Due after 
three years 

through 
five years 

Due after 
five years 
through 

seven years 

Due after 
seven years 

through 
ten years 

Due after 
ten years 

 (Millions of yen) 

Due from banks  ¥180,076  ¥ –  ¥ –  ¥ –  ¥ –  ¥ – 

Debt purchased 11,808 – – – – – 

Securities: 29,573 179,071 188,217 69,339 192,725 140,374 

Available-for-sale securities 

with maturities: 29,573 179,071 188,217 69,339 192,725 140,374 

Government bonds 500 20,000 10,000 – 16,000 73,000 

Local government bonds 7,293 78,046 64,568 40,783 55,780 2,361 

Corporate bonds  14,597 59,133 69,521 13,635 800 – 

Other 7,183 21,891 44,128 14,920 120,145 65,013 

Loans and bills discounted (*) 416,105 330,650 298,015 242,584 250,716 515,373 

Total ¥637,564 ¥509,721 ¥486,233 ¥311,924 ¥443,441 ¥655,747 

 

At 31st March, 2024 

Due in one 

year or less 

Due after 

one year 

through 

three years 

Due after 

three years 

through 

five years 

Due after 

five years 

through 

seven years 

Due after 

seven years 

through 

ten years 

Due after 

ten years 

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Due from banks  $1,189,332  $ –  $ –  $ –  $ –  $ – 

Debt purchased 77,993 – – – – – 

Securities: 195,320 1,182,692 1,243,101 457,957 1,272,869 927,116 

Available-for-sale securities 

with maturities: 195,320 1,182,692 1,243,101 457,957 1,272,869 927,116 

Government bonds 3,302 132,092 66,046 – 105,673 482,135 

Local government bonds 48,168 515,462 426,446 269,358 368,404 15,593 

Corporate bonds 96,407 390,551 459,160 90,058 5,284 – 

Other  47,443 144,587 291,449 98,541 793,508 429,388 

Loans and bills discounted (*) 2,748,201 2,183,806 1,968,270 1,602,173 1,655,875 3,403,826 

Total $4,210,846 $3,366,498 $3,211,371 $2,060,130 $2,928,744 $4,330,942 

       

 

(*) Loans and bills discounted do not include ¥9,449 million (U.S.$62,409 thousand) of 

receivables such as those due from bankrupt or effectively bankrupt borrowers, since it 

is not certain when they can be collected or redeemed and ¥22,900 million 

(U.S.$151,248 thousand) of receivables which do not have fixed maturity dates. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

 

At 31st March, 2023 
Due in one 
year or less 

Due after 
one year 
through 

three years 

Due after 
three years 

through 
five years 

Due after 
five years 
through 

seven years 

Due after 
seven years 

through 
ten years 

Due after 
ten years 

 (Millions of yen) 

Due from banks  ¥379,612  ¥ –  ¥ –  ¥ –  ¥ –  ¥ – 

Call loans and bills purchased 466      

Debt purchased 12,473 – – – – – 

Securities: 25,117 89,582 228,649 65,470 145,793 128,055 

Available-for-sale securities 

with maturities: 

 

25,117 

 

89,582 

 

228,649 

 

65,470 

 

145,793 

 

128,055 

Government bonds – 500 – – 5,500 109,000 

Local government bonds 3,352 30,104 100,098 27,664 72,248 3,761 

Corporate bonds  14,059 30,945 70,877 26,801 7,000 – 

Other 7,705 28,032 57,673 11,004 61,044 15,294 

Loans and bills discounted (*) 375,841 342,240 297,169 190,111 244,863 499,519 

Total ¥793,511 ¥431,822 ¥525,818 ¥255,582 ¥390,656 ¥627,575 

 

(*) Loans and bills discounted do not include ¥8,695 million of receivables such as those 

due from bankrupt or effectively bankrupt borrowers, since it is not certain when they 

can be collected or redeemed and ¥21,142 million of receivables which do not have fixed 

maturity dates. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

(Note 3) Repayment schedule of bonds, borrowed money and other interest bearing 

liabilities 

 

At 31st March, 2024 

Due in one 

year or less 

Due after 

one year 

through 

three years 

Due after 

three years 

through 

five years 

Due after 

five years 

through 

seven years 

Due after 

seven years 

through ten 

years 

Due after 

ten years 

 (Millions of yen) 

Deposits (*) ¥2,828,087 ¥184,460 ¥24,158 ¥498 ¥2,851 ¥– 

Payables under securities 
lending transactions 

 

69 – – – – – 

Borrowed money 459 702 65,110 42 36 28 

Total ¥2,828,616 ¥185,163 ¥89,269 ¥541 ¥2,888 ¥28 

 

 

At 31st March, 2024 

Due in one 

year or less 

Due after 

one year 

through 

three years 

Due after 

three years 

through 

five years 

Due after 

five years 

through 

seven years 

Due after 

seven years 

through 

ten years 

Due after 

ten years 

 (Thousands of dollars) 

Deposits (*) $18,678,341 $1,218,284 $159,557 $3,294 $18,835 $ – 

Payables under securities 
lending transactions 461 – – – – – 

Borrowed money 3,033 4,641 430,029 283 241 187 

Total $18,681,835 $1,222,925 $589,586 $3,577 $19,076 $187 

 

(*) Demand deposits are classified into “Due in one year or less” of deposits. 

 

At 31st March, 2023 

Due in one 

year or less 

Due after 

one year 

through 

three years 

Due after 

three years 

through 

five years 

Due after 

five years 

through 

seven years 

Due after 

seven years 

through ten 

years 

Due after 

ten years 

 (Millions of yen) 

Deposits (*) ¥2,861,553 ¥204,522 ¥20,893 ¥424 ¥617 ¥– 

Payables under securities 
lending transactions 

 

33,874 – – – – – 

Borrowed money 7,076 878 276 45 43 39 

Total ¥2,902,504 ¥205,401 ¥21,170 ¥469 ¥660 ¥39 

 

(*) Demand deposits are classified into “Due in one year or less” of deposits. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

3. Fair value information by level within the fair value hierarchy 

 
The fair value of financial instruments is classified into the following three levels according 
to the observability and materiality of inputs used to measure fair value. 

 
Level 1 fair value:  Fair value measured using observable inputs, i.e. quoted prices  
 in active markets for assets or liabilities that are the subject of  
 the measurement. 
Level 2 fair value:  Fair value measured using observable inputs other than Level 1  
 inputs. 
Level 3 fair value:  Fair value measured using unobservable inputs. 
 

If multiple inputs are used that are significant to the fair value measurement, the fair value 

measurement is categorized in its entirety in the level of the lowest level input that is 

significant to the entire measurement. 

 

(1) Financial instruments measured at fair value 

 

 Fair Value 

At 31st March, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 (Millions of yen) 

Money held in trust ¥       – ¥   2,906 ¥      – ¥    2,906 

Securities:     

Available-for-sale securities     

Government bonds and local 

government bonds 116,336 245,695 

 

– 362,031 

Corporate bonds – 111,114 45,176 156,290 

Stocks 40,637 – – 40,637 

Other securities 15,680 298,460 – 314,141 

Derivative transactions:     

Interest rate related – 51 – 51 

Foreign exchange related – 2,682 – 2,682 

Total assets  ¥ 172,654  ¥ 660,911 ¥ 45,176 ¥  878,742 

Derivative transactions:       

Interest rate related  ¥ – ¥     592  ¥ – ¥      592 

Foreign exchange related – 4,278 – 4,278 

Credit derivatives – – 6 6 

Total liabilities  ¥ –  ¥ 4,871  ¥ 6  ¥ 4,877 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

 Fair Value 

At 31st March, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 (Thousands of dollars) 

Money held in trust $       – $  19,199 $      – $   19,199 

Securities:     

Available-for-sale securities     

Government bonds and local 

government bonds 

 

768,352 1,622,718 

 

– 2,391,070 

Corporate bonds – 733,862 298,372 1,032,234 

Stocks 268,396 – – 268,396 

Other securities 103,565 1,971,208 – 2,074,773 

Derivative transactions:     

Interest rate related – 338 – 338 

Foreign exchange related – 17,720 – 17,720 

Total assets  $ 1,140,313  $4,365,045 $ 298,372 $ 5,803,730 

Derivative transactions:       

Interest rate related  $ – $   3,912  $ – $    3,912 

Foreign exchange related – 28,260 – 28,260 

Credit derivatives – – 45 45 

Total liabilities  $ –  $ 32,172  $ 45 $   32,217 

 

(*1) Not included in the table above are investment trusts to which the treatment in Paragraph 24-

9 of the Guidance on Fair Value Measurement is applied whereby net asset value is treated as 

fair value. The amount of such investment trusts in the consolidated balance sheets is ¥15,050 

million (U.S.$99,402 thousand). 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

(*2) A reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances of investment trusts to 

which the treatment in Paragraph 24-9 is applied 

 

For the year ended 31st March, 2024 
(Millions of yen) 

(Thousands of 

dollars) 

Beginning balance................................................................  ¥13,930 $92,005 

Profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the period   

Recorded in profit or loss (a)  ..........................................  — — 

Recorded in other comprehensive income (b)  ................  255 1,686 

Purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net)  .............  864 5,711 

The amount by which the net asset value of  

the investment trusts is deemed to be the fair value ..........  

 

— 

 

— 

The amount by which the net asset value of  

the investment trusts is not deemed to be the fair value  ..  

 

— 

 

— 

Ending balance .....................................................................  ¥15,050 $99,402 

Gains or losses on valuation of investment trusts  

held at the end of the fiscal year included in profit or loss 

for the period (a) ................................................................  

 

 

¥— 

 

 

$— 

 

(a) Included in “other operating income” and “other operating expenses” in the consolidated 

statements of income. 

(b) Included in “unrealized losses on securities” under “other comprehensive income” in the 

consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

  Fair Value  

At 31st March, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 (Millions of yen) 

Money held in trust ¥       – ¥   2,000 ¥      – ¥    2,000 

Trading account securities and 

securities: 

   

 

Trading securities     

Government bonds and local 

government bonds 

 

26 

 

– 

 

– 26 

Available-for-sale securities     

Government bonds and local 

government bonds 

 

112,266 

 

235,102 

 

– 347,368 

Corporate bonds – 108,229 40,555 148,785 

Stocks 40,233 – – 40,233 

Other securities 57,686 179,036 – 236,722 

Derivative transactions:     

Foreign exchange related – 1,699 – 1,699 

Total assets  ¥ 210,211  ¥ 526,068 ¥ 40,555 ¥  776,836 

Derivative transactions:       

Interest rate related  ¥ – ¥   1,647  ¥ – ¥    1,647 

Foreign exchange related – 3,383 – 3,383 

Credit derivatives – – 4 4 

Total liabilities  ¥ –  ¥ 5,031  ¥ 4 ¥ 5,035 

 

(*1) Not included in the table above are investment trusts to which the treatment in Paragraph 24-

9 of the Guidance on Fair Value Measurement is applied whereby net asset value is treated as 

fair value. The amount of such investment trusts in the consolidated balance sheets is ¥13,930 

million. 
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(*2) A reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances of investment trusts to 

which the treatment in Paragraph 24-9 is applied 

 

For the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Millions of yen) 

Beginning balance................................................................  ¥13,208 

Profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the period  

Recorded in profit or loss (a)  ..........................................  — 

Recorded in other comprehensive income (b)  ................  371 

Purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net)  .............  350 

The amount by which the net asset value of  

the investment trusts is deemed to be the fair value ..........  

 

— 

The amount by which the net asset value of  

the investment trusts is not deemed to be the fair value  ..  

 

— 

Ending balance .....................................................................  ¥13,930 

Gains or losses on valuation of investment trusts  

held at the end of the fiscal year included in profit or loss 

for the period (a) ................................................................  

 

 

¥— 

 

(a) Included in “other operating income” and “other operating expenses” in the consolidated 

statements of income. 

(b) Included in “unrealized losses on securities” under “other comprehensive income” in the 

consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 
(2) Financial instruments other than those measured at fair value 
 

 Fair Value 

At 31st March, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 (Millions of yen) 

Loans and bills discounted ¥       – ¥       – ¥ 2,066,537 ¥ 2,066,537 

Total assets  ¥       –  ¥ – ¥ 2,066,537 ¥ 2,066,537 

Deposits  ¥ – ¥ 3,040,112 ¥      – ¥ 3,040,112 

Borrowed money – 66,379 – 66,379 

Total liabilities  ¥ –  ¥ 3,106,492  ¥ – ¥ 3,106,492 

 

 Fair Value 

At 31st March, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 (Thousands of dollars) 

Loans and bills discounted $       – $       – $ 13,648,617 $ 13,648,617 

Total assets  $       –  $ – $ 13,648,617 $ 13,648,617 

Deposits  $ – $ 20,078,677 $      – $ 20,078,677 

Borrowed money – 438,409 – 438,409 

Total liabilities  $ –  $ 20,517,086 $      – $ 20,517,086 

 

 Fair Value 

At 31st March, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

 (Millions of yen) 

Loans and bills discounted ¥       – ¥       – ¥ 1,963,985 ¥ 1,963,985 

Total assets  ¥       –  ¥ – ¥ 1,963,985 ¥ 1,963,985 

Deposits  ¥ – ¥ 3,088,039 ¥      – ¥ 3,088,039 

Borrowed money – 8,360 – 8,360 

Total liabilities  ¥ –  ¥ 3,096,399  ¥ – ¥ 3,096,399 

 

 

(Note 1) A description of the valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value 

measurements 

 

Assets: 

Money held in trust 

For money held in trust whose main purpose is to manage securities, securities that are 

components of assets held in trust are classified as Level 2 fair value based on the level of 

the components, which is based on prices quoted by correspondent financial institutions. 

 

Trading account securities and securities 

Trading account securities and securities for which unadjusted quoted market prices in active 

markets are available are classified as Level 1 fair value. This mainly includes listed equities 

and government bonds. If the market is not active, even if published quoted market prices are 

used, the securities are classified as Level 2 fair value. This mainly includes local government 

bonds and corporate bonds. Investment trusts that do not have trading prices in the market 

are classified as Level 2 fair value with the net asset value as the fair value if there are no 

material restrictions that would require compensation for the risk from market participants 

with respect to cancellation or repurchase requests. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

For privately placed bonds guaranteed by the Bank, the fair value is calculated by discounting 

the total amount of principal, interest, etc. by the discount rate that incorporates credit risk 

and other risk factors for each category based on internal rating and term, and is classified as 

Level 3 fair value because the discount rate is unobservable. 

 

Loans and bills discounted 

For loans and bills discounted, the fair value is calculated by discounting the total amount of 

principal and interest by a discount rate that reflects the market interest rate and credit risk, 

etc., for each loan category based on loan type, internal rating and term. Of these, those with 

floating interest rates reflect market interest rates in a short period of time, and if the credit 

conditions of the borrower have not changed significantly since the loan was executed, the 

carrying value is used as the fair value because the fair value approximates carrying value. 

For loans to bankrupt, substantially bankrupt and likely to go bankrupt borrowers, reserve 

for possible loan losses is provided based on the present value of estimated future cash flows 

or the amount expected to be collected through collateral and guarantees, etc. As the fair 

value approximates the amount of loans less the amount of reserve for possible loan losses 

on the consolidated balance sheets as of the end of the fiscal year, this value is used as the 

fair value and classified as Level 3 fair value. 

 

Liabilities: 

Deposits 

For demand deposits, the carrying value is used as the fair value. The fair value of time 

deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit is calculated based on the discounted present 

value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the rate applicable to new acceptances of 

the same type of deposits for the remaining period of time, broken down by a certain period. 

For foreign currency deposits and nonresident yen deposits, the carrying value is used as fair 

value because the contractual maturity is short and the fair value and carrying value 

approximate each other. These transactions are classified as Level 2 fair value. 

 

Borrowed money 

For transactions with short remaining maturities, the carrying value is used as fair value 

because fair value is assumed to approximate the carrying value. For transactions with long 

remaining maturities, the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the 

replacement rate for similar instruments in the market up to the remaining maturity is used 

as fair value. These transactions are classified as Level 2 fair value. 

 

Derivative transactions 

Derivative transactions are mainly over-the-counter transactions and there are no published 

quoted market prices. Therefore, the fair value of derivative transactions is based on the 

discounted present value of future cash flows and option pricing models using inputs such as 

interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and volatility, depending on the type of transaction and 

maturity of the transaction. When unobservable inputs are not used or their effects are not 

material, the fair value is classified as Level 2 fair value, which includes interest rate swap 

transactions and currency swap transactions. When unobservable inputs are used, the fair 

value is classified as Level 3 fair value. This includes credit derivatives. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

(Note 2) Information about Level 3 fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value 

 

(1) Quantitative information on significant unobservable inputs 

 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

Valuation 

techniques 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

Scope of 

inputs 

Weighted 

average of 

inputs 

Securities 

Available-for-sale 

securities 

Corporate bonds 

Present value 

technique 

Probability of 

default 

0.03% to 

14.77% 

0.83% 

Loss given 

default 

41.76% to 

85.78% 

66.12% 

Rate of 

prepayment 

prior to 

maturity 

― ― 

Derivative transactions 

Credit derivatives 

Present value 

technique 

Probability of 

default 

0.13% to 

11.47% 

3.14% 

 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023 

Valuation 

techniques 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

Scope of 

inputs 

Weighted 

average of 

inputs 

Trading account securities 

and securities 

Available-for-sale 

securities 

Corporate bonds 

Present value 

technique 

Probability of 

default 

0.06% to 

12.65% 

0.93% 

Loss given 

default 

43.65% to 

81.54% 

64.02% 

Rate of 

prepayment 

prior to 

maturity 

― ― 

Derivative transactions 

Credit derivatives 

Present value 

technique 

Probability of 

default 

0.34% to 

12.65% 

7.53% 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

(2) A reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances and gains or losses 

on valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities held at the end of the reporting 

period included in profit or loss for the period 

 

 Securities 

 Available-for-sale securities 

 Corporate bonds 

For the year ended 31st March, 2024 
(Millions of yen) 

(Thousands of 

dollars) 

Beginning balance........................................................  ¥40,555 $267,855 

Profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the 

period 

  

Recorded in profit or loss (*1) ................................  — — 

Recorded in other comprehensive income (*2)  ......  (2) (17) 

Purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net)  .....  4,623 30,534 

Transfer into Level 3 (*3) ............................................  — — 

Transfer out of Level 3 (*4)  .......................................  — — 

Ending balance .............................................................  ¥45,176 $298,372 

Gains or losses on valuation of financial assets and 

financial liabilities held at the end of the fiscal year 

included in profit or loss for the period (*1) ................  

 

 

¥— 

 

 

$— 

 

 Derivative transactions 

 Credit derivatives 

For the year ended 31st March, 2024 
(Millions of yen) 

(Thousands of 

dollars) 

Beginning balance........................................................  ¥(4) $(28) 

Profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the 

period 

  

Recorded in profit or loss (*1) ................................  (2) (16) 

Recorded in other comprehensive income (*2)  ......  — — 

Purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net)  .....  — — 

Transfer into Level 3 (*3) ............................................  — — 

Transfer out of Level 3 (*4)  .......................................  — — 

Ending balance .............................................................  ¥(6) $(44) 

Gains or losses on valuation of financial assets and 

financial liabilities held at the end of the fiscal year 

included in profit or loss for the period (*1) ................  

 

 

¥(6) 

 

 

$(44) 

 

(*1)  Included in “other operating income” and “other operating expenses” in the 

consolidated statements of income. 

(*2) Included in “unrealized losses on securities” under “other comprehensive income” in 

the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 

(*3) Transferred from Level 2 fair value into Level 3 fair value. Not applicable for the year 

ended 31st March, 2024. 

(*4) Transferred from Level 3 fair value into Level 2 fair value. Not applicable for the year 

ended 31st March, 2024. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 Securities 

 Available-for-sale 

securities 

 Corporate bonds 

For the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Millions of yen) 

Beginning balance.........................................................  ¥36,173 

Profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the 

period 

 

Recorded in profit or loss (*1) .................................  1 

Recorded in other comprehensive income (*2)  .......  (371) 

Purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net)  ......  4,752 

Transfer into Level 3 (*3) .............................................  — 

Transfer out of Level 3 (*4)  ........................................  — 

Ending balance ..............................................................  ¥40,555 

Gains or losses on valuation of financial assets and 

financial liabilities held at the end of the fiscal year 

included in profit or loss for the period (*1) .................  

 

 

¥— 

 

 Derivative 

transactions 

 Credit derivatives 

For the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Millions of yen) 

Beginning balance...........................................................  ¥— 

Profit or loss or other comprehensive income for the 

period 

 

Recorded in profit or loss (*1) ...................................  (4) 

Recorded in other comprehensive income (*2)  .........  — 

Purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements (net)  ........  — 

Transfer into Level 3 (*3) ...............................................  — 

Transfer out of Level 3 (*4)  ..........................................  — 

Ending balance ................................................................  ¥(4) 

Gains or losses on valuation of financial assets and 

financial liabilities held at the end of the fiscal year 

included in profit or loss for the period (*1) ...................  

 

 

¥(4) 

 

(*1)  Included in “other operating income” and “other operating expenses” in the 

consolidated statements of income. 

(*2) Included in “unrealized losses on securities” under “other comprehensive income” in 

the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 

(*3) Transferred from Level 2 fair value into Level 3 fair value. Not applicable for the year 

ended 31st March, 2023. 

(*4) Transferred from Level 3 fair value into Level 2 fair value. Not applicable for the year 

ended 31st March, 2023. 
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13. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (continued) 

 

(3) A description of valuation processes used for fair value measurements 

 

The Group’s back office has established policies and procedures regarding the 

calculation of fair value and the use of fair value models, and calculates fair value in 

accordance with these policies and procedures. The fair value calculated is verified by 

an independent valuation department to ensure the appropriateness of the valuation 

techniques and inputs used to calculate fair value and the appropriateness of the 

classification of fair value levels. The results of the verification are reported to the back 

office each period to ensure the appropriateness of the fair value calculation policies and 

procedures. 

 

In calculating fair value, the Group uses valuation models that most appropriately reflect 

the nature, characteristics, and risks of individual assets. 

 

(4) A description of sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in significant 

unobservable inputs 

 

Probability of default 

The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood that a bankruptcy event will 

occur and the contract amount will not be recovered. For privately placed bonds 

guaranteed by the Bank, a significant increase (decrease) in the probability of default 

will result in a significant decrease (increase) in fair value. For credit derivatives, a 

significant increase (decrease) in the probability of default will result in a significant 

increase (decrease) in fair value. 

 

Loss given default 

The loss given default is the ratio of losses expected to be incurred in bankruptcy to the 

total outstanding amount of bonds or loans, and is an estimate calculated based on the 

actual defaults of counterparties in the past. For privately placed bonds guaranteed by 

the Bank, a significant increase (decrease) in the loss given default will result in a 

significant decrease (increase) in fair value. 
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14. Fair Value of Securities 

 

Fair value and valuation differences of securities as of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 and other 

relevant information were summarized as follows. Securities below include trading securities 

classified as trading account securities, negotiable certificates of deposit included in “Cash 

and due from banks.” The same definition was applied in the following tables. 

 

(a) Trading securities 
 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Valuation loss included in income for 

the year ¥(0) ¥— $— 

 

(b) Available-for-sale securities 

 

 Available-for-sale securities, whose carrying values exceeded the acquisition costs at 

31st March, 2023 and 2024 were summarized as follows: 
 

 2024 

 

Carrying 

value 

Acquisition 

cost Difference 

Carrying 

value 

Acquisition 

cost Difference 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Stocks ¥  38,594 ¥  16,018 ¥22,575 $ 254,902 $ 105,797 $149,105 

Bonds:       

National government 

bonds 
61,623 61,573 50 406,999 406,669 330 

Local government 

bonds 
9,542 9,516 26 63,027 62,855 172 

Corporate bonds 8,250 8,221 28 54,490 54,300 190 

Other securities 205,929 200,659 5,270 1,360,078 1,325,270 34,808 

Total ¥323,941 ¥295,990 ¥27,951 $2,139,496 $1,954,891 $184,605 

 

 2023 

 

Carrying 

value 

Acquisition 

cost Difference 

 (Millions of yen) 

Stocks ¥  34,669 ¥  19,059 ¥15,610 

Bonds:    

National government 

bonds 
80,264 78,733 1,530 

Local government 

bonds 
70,018 69,831 187 

Corporate bonds 57,193 57,100 93 

Other securities 71,288 68,353 2,935 

Total ¥313,434 ¥293,077 ¥20,356 
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14. Fair Value of Securities (continued) 

  

 Available-for-sale securities, whose carrying values did not exceed the acquisition costs 

at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were summarized as follows: 
 

 2024 

 

Carrying 

value 

Acquisition 

cost Difference 

Carrying 

value 

Acquisition 

cost Difference 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Stocks ¥ 2,043 ¥ 2,209 ¥ (166) $ 13,494 $ 14,593 $ (1,099) 

Bonds:       

National government 

bonds 
54,712 56,231 (1,519) 361,353 371,388 (10,035) 

Local government 

bonds 
236,152 239,395 (3,242) 1,559,691 1,581,107 (21,416)  

Corporate bonds 148,040 149,436 (1,395) 977,744 986,964 (9,220)  

Other securities 123,262 126,309 (3,047) 814,097 834,222 (20,125) 

Total ¥564,211 ¥573,582 ¥(9,371) $3,726,379 $3,788,274 $ (61,895) 

 

 2023 

 

Carrying 

value 

Acquisition 

cost Difference 

 (Millions of yen) 

Stocks ¥ 5,563 ¥ 6,365 ¥ (802) 

Bonds:    

National government 

bonds 
32,001 32,921 (919) 

Local government 

bonds 
165,084 167,474 (2,390) 

Corporate bonds 91,592 92,574 (981) 

Other securities 179,364 189,076 (9,712) 

Total ¥473,606 ¥488,412 ¥(14,805) 
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14. Fair Value of Securities (continued) 

  

(c) Available-for-sale securities sold during the year 
 
 Proceeds and aggregate gains and losses of available-for-sale securities for the years 

ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 
 

 
 2024 

 

Proceeds 
from sales Gains Losses 

Proceeds 
from sales Gains Losses 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Stocks ¥  11,774 ¥ 2,395 ¥ 109 $ 77,766 $15,819 $ 725 
Bonds:       

National government 
bonds 

414,015 4,850 4,287 2,734,401 32,039 28,320 

Local government 
bonds 

7,282 126 - 48,099 834 - 

Corporate bonds 10,346 36 27 68,337 239 179 
Other securities 117,669 1,111 5,745 777,157 7,342 37,949 

Total ¥561,089 ¥ 8,520 ¥10,170 $3,705,760 $56,273 $67,173 

 
 
 2023 

 

Proceeds 
from sales Gains Losses 

 (Millions of yen) 

Stocks ¥  11,894 ¥  4,033 ¥ 44 
Bonds:    

National government 
bonds 

321,200 13,878 11,908 

Local government 
bonds 

73,550 1,057 380 

Corporate bonds 14,328 12 675 
Other securities 162,404 3,682 10,576 

Total ¥583,378 ¥22,664 ¥23,584 
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14. Fair Value of Securities (continued) 

 

(d) Impairment on securities 
 
 Certain available-for-sale securities, with the exception of shares, etc. that do not have 

a market price and investments in partnership, whose fair value significantly declined 

from the acquisition cost are valued at fair value and losses on devaluation of those 

securities are recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the value is 

considered recoverable. 
 

Impairment loss on securities for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were ¥29 

million on equity securities and nil. 
 
 Determining whether the fair value is “significantly declined” is based on the 

comparison of average fair values of one month before year end date and acquisition 

costs. When the fair value declined more than 50% of the acquisition cost, the Group 

determined those to be significantly declined, and when the fair value declined between 

30% and 50% of the acquisition cost, the Group examines the credit risks of the issuers 

and the trend of the fair value and business results during a certain past period to make 

a determination. 

 

(e) Money held in trust for investment 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Carrying value ¥2,000 ¥2,906 $19,199 

Valuation differences included in profit 

or loss for the year ¥— ¥18 $120 

 

(f) Unrealized gains on securities  

 

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 consisted 

of the following: 

 
 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of  
U.S. dollars) 

Valuation differences    
  Available-for-sale securities ¥5,395 ¥18,355 $121,233 

Deferred tax liabilities (1,744) (5,651) (37,324) 
Non-controlling interests - - - 
Bank’s ownership share in unrealized 
gains on available-for-sale securities 
held by companies accounted for by 
the equity method 

 
 
 

220 

 
 
 

270 

 
 
 

1,786 

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale 
securities 

 
¥3,871 

 
¥12,975 

 
$85,695 

 

Notes: 

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities for the investment business limited 

partnerships and associations of ¥121 million and ¥52 million (U.S.$348 thousand) for 

the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024, respectively, were included in “Available 

-for-sale securities” in the breakdown of “Valuation differences.” 
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15. Derivatives 

 

(1) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied 

 

 The following shows contract amount or notional principal, fair value and related 

valuation gain or loss and computation method of fair value with respect to derivatives 

to which hedge accounting is not applied. Contract amount or notional principal does 

not represent the market risk exposure of derivative transactions. 

 

a) Interest rate related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 Nil. 

 

b) Foreign exchange related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 
 2024 

 Contract amount  Valuation 

 Total Over one year Fair value gains (losses) 

 (Millions of yen) 
Over-the-counter:     

Currency swaps ¥165,327 ¥128,989 ¥ 6 ¥ 6 

Forward exchange 

contracts: 

    

Sold 194,933 4,497 (1,756) (1,756) 

Bought 6,516 4,457 154 154 

Total   ¥(1,595) ¥(1,595) 

 
 2024 

 Contract amount  Valuation 

 Total Over one year Fair value gains (losses) 

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 
Over-the-counter:     

Currency swaps $1,091,920 $851,920 $  40 $  40 

Forward exchange 

contracts: 

    

Sold 1,287,452 29,706 (11,599) (11,599) 

Bought 43,036 29,440 1,020 1,020 

Total   $(10,539) $(10,539) 
  

Note: Transactions in the table above are stated at the fair value and the related 

valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income. 

 
 2023 

 Contract amount  Valuation 

 Total Over one year Fair value gains (losses) 

 (Millions of yen) 
Over-the-counter:     

Currency swaps ¥135,659 ¥104,787 ¥    0 ¥   0 

Forward exchange 

contracts: 

    

Sold 126,329 86 (1,713) (1,713) 

Bought 3,579 16 27 27 

Total   ¥(1,684) ¥(1,684) 

 
Note: Transactions in the table above are stated at the fair value and the related 

valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income. 
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15. Derivatives (continued) 

 

c) Equity related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 Nil 

d) Bond related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 Nil 

e) Commodity related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 Nil 

f) Credit derivatives at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 2024 

 Contract amount  Valuation 

 Total Over one year Fair value gains (losses) 

 (Millions of yen) 
Over-the-counter:     

Credit default swap:     

Sold ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - 
Bought 357 357 (6) (6) 

Total   ¥(6) ¥(6) 

 
 2024 

 Contract amount  Valuation 

 Total Over one year Fair value gains (losses) 

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 
Over-the-counter:     

Credit default swap:     

Sold $ - $ - $ - $ - 
Bought 2,358 2,358 (45) (45) 

Total   $(45) $(45) 
  
Notes: 1. Transactions in the table above are stated at the fair value and the related 

valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income. 

2. “Sold” represents credit risk-taking transactions and “Bought” represents 

credit risk-averting transactions. 

 
 2023 

 Contract amount  Valuation 

 Total Over one year Fair value gains (losses) 

 (Millions of yen) 
Over-the-counter:     

Credit default swap:     

Sold ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - 
Bought 215 215 (4) (4) 

Total   ¥(4) ¥(4) 
 
Notes: 1. Transactions in the table above are stated at the fair value and the related 

valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated statement of income. 

2. “Sold” represents credit risk-taking transactions and “Bought” represents 

credit risk-averting transactions. 
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15. Derivatives (continued) 

 

(2) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied 
 
 With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied, contract amount or 

notional principal and fair value at the balance sheet date by transaction type and hedge 

accounting method are as follows. Contract amount or notional principal does not 

represent the market risk exposure of derivative transactions. 
 

a) Interest rate related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 
2024 

Hedge 
accounting 

method Transaction type 

Major 
hedged 

item 

Contract amount 

Fair 
value Total 

Over 
one year 

   (Millions of yen) 

Principal 
method 

Interest rate swaps 
Securities 
(bonds) 

¥65,000 ¥65,000 ¥(541) Receivable floating rate/ 
Payable fixed rate 

 Total    ¥(541) 

 
2024 

Hedge 
accounting 

method Transaction type 

Major 
hedged 

item 

Contract amount 

Fair 
value Total 

Over 
one year 

   (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Principal 
method 

Interest rate swaps 
Securities 
(bonds) 

$429,298 $429,298 $(3,574) Receivable floating rate/ 
Payable fixed rate 

 Total    $(3,574) 

 

Note:  For interest risks arising from financial assets and liabilities, the Bank 

applied the deferred method of hedge accounting. 

 
2023 

Hedge 
accounting 

method Transaction type 

Major 
hedged 

item 

Contract amount 

Fair 
value Total 

Over 
one year 

   (Millions of yen) 

Principal 
method 

Interest rate swaps Loans and 
securities 
(bonds) 

¥100,000 ¥100,000 ¥(1,647) Receivable floating rate/ 
Payable fixed rate 

 Total    ¥(1,647) 

 

Note:  For interest risks arising from financial assets and liabilities, the Bank 

applied the deferred method of hedge accounting. 
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15. Derivatives (continued) 

 

b) Foreign exchange related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 
 

 Nil 

 

c) Equity related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 Nil 

 

d) Bond related transactions at 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

 Nil 



52 

16. Retirement Benefit Plans 

 

The Bank maintains the cash balance pension plan as a defined benefit plan. On 1st October, 

2017, the Bank transferred a part of its defined benefit corporate pension plan to a defined 

contribution pension plan. 

 

The consolidated subsidiaries have lump-sum payment plans and net defined benefit liability 

and severance benefit expenses are calculated using the simplified method where liabilities 

are recognized at the amount which would be required to be paid in accordance with the 

internal rules if eligible employees retired at the balance sheet date.  

 

Defined benefit plans 

 

(1) The changes in projected benefit obligation (excluding the plans to which the simplified 

method is applied) for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 

  

 2023 2024 2024 

 
(Millions of yen) 

 

(Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Balance at beginning of year ¥ 27,282 ¥ 24,490 $ 161,748 

Service cost 546 480 3,173 

Interest cost 226 320 2,119 

Actuarial (gain) loss (1,598) (533) (3,525) 

Retirement benefits paid  (1,965) (1,579) (10,434) 

Balance at end of year ¥ 24,490 ¥ 23,178 $ 153,081 

 

(2) The changes in plan assets (excluding the plans to which the simplified method is applied) 

for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Balance at beginning of year ¥ 31,250 ¥ 30,097 $ 198,782 

Expected return on plan assets 812 782 5,168 

Actuarial gain (loss) (484) 3,300 21,799 

Contributions from employer 485 461 3,047 

Retirement benefits paid (1,965) (1,579) (10,434) 

Balance at end of year ¥ 30,097 ¥ 33,062 $ 218,362 
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16. Retirement Benefit Plans (continued) 

 

(3) The changes in net defined benefit liability (including the plans to which the simplified 

method is applied) for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Balance at beginning of year ¥ 75 ¥ 76 $ 506 

Severance benefit expenses 4 4 32 

Retirement benefits paid (3) (3) (26) 

Balance at end of year ¥ 76 ¥ 77 $ 512 

 

(4) Reconciliation between the balances of projected benefit obligation and plan assets and 

net defined benefit liability and net defined benefit asset recorded on the consolidated 

balance sheets (including the plans to which the simplified method is applied) as of 31st 

March, 2023 and 2024 was as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Funded projected benefit obligation ¥ 24,490 ¥ 23,178 $ 153,081 

Plan assets at fair value (30,097) (33,062) (218,362) 

 (5,607) (9,884) (65,281) 

Unfunded projected benefit obligation 76 77 512 

Net liability (asset) recorded on the consolidated 

balance sheets (5,530) (9,806) (64,769) 
    
Net defined benefit liability 76 77 512 

Net defined benefit asset (5,607) (9,884) (65,281) 

Net liability (asset) recorded on the consolidated 

balance sheets 
¥ (5,530) ¥ (9,806) $ (64,769) 
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16. Retirement Benefit Plans (continued) 

 

(5) Components of severance benefit expenses for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 

2024 were as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Service cost ¥   546 ¥   480 $  3,173 

Interest cost 226 320 2,119 

Expected return on plan assets (812) (782) (5,168) 

Amortization of actuarial loss (57) (184) (1,216) 

Amortization of prior service cost (94) - - 

Severance benefit expenses calculated using the 

simplified method 4 4 30 

Total ¥ (187) ¥ (160) $(1,062) 

 

(6) The components of remeasurements of defined benefit plans in other comprehensive 

income (before applicable tax effect) for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were 

as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Prior service cost ¥  (94) ¥ - $ - 

Actuarial gain (loss) 1,056 3,649 24,106 

Total ¥  962 ¥ 3,649 $24,106 

 

(7) The components of remeasurements of defined benefit plans in accumulated other 

comprehensive income (before applicable tax effect) as of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

were as follows 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Unrecognized prior service cost ¥ - ¥ - $ - 

Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) 1,916 5,565 36,761 

Total ¥1,916 ¥5,565 $36,761 
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16. Retirement Benefit Plans (continued) 
 

(8) Plan assets 

 

a) The components of plan assets as of 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 

 
 2023 2024 

Bonds 26%  26%  

Stocks 31 36 

Life insurance general account 31 27 

Others 12 11 

Total 100% 100% 

 

There were no retirement benefit trusts established for corporate pension plans. 

 

b) Expected long-term rate of return 

 

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is determined considering current 

and expected distribution of plan assets and long-term rate of return derived from 

various components of the plan assets. 
 

(9) Principal assumptions used for the actuarial calculation (Each figure is the weighted 

average rate.) for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were as follows: 

 
 2023 2024 

Discount rate 1.3% 1.5% 

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 2.6 2.6 

Retirement rate 5.9 5.9 

Estimated rate of increase in salary 5.2 5.2 

 

Defined contribution plans 

 

The amount to be contributed to the Bank’s defined contribution plan for the years ended 

31st March, 2023 and 2024 were ¥115 million and ¥118 million (U.S.$783 thousand), 

respectively. 
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17. Leases Transactions (Lessees’ Accounting) 

 

(1) Finance leases 

 

 Lease assets under finance leases that do not transfer ownership consist of automated 

teller machines and office equipment. 

 

(2) Operating leases 

 

 Future minimum lease payments subsequent to 31st March, 2023 and 2024 for non-

cancellable operating leases are summarized as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Year ending 31st March,    

Due within one year ¥112 ¥152 $1,007 

Due after one year 345 412 2,722 

Total ¥458 ¥564 $3,729 

 

 



57 

18. Stock Option Plans 

 

The following stock option plan for certain directors of the Bank was approved at the general 

shareholders’ meeting.  

 

Expenses related to stock options for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 were nil. 

The stock option outstanding during the year ended 31st March, 2024 was as follows: 
 

   2012 stock option 2013 stock option 2014 stock option 2015 stock option 

Title and number of 

persons granted 

9 directors of the 

Bank 

10 directors of the 

Bank 

10 directors of the 

Bank 

9 directors 

(excluding outside 

directors) of the 

Bank 

Number of options 

granted (*) 

50,900 44,900 47,260 34,720 

Date of grant 8th August, 2012 6th August, 2013 12th August, 2014 11th August, 2015 

Exercise price ¥ 1 

(U.S.$0.01) 

¥ 1 

(U.S.$0.01) 

¥ 1 

(U.S.$0.01) 

¥ 1 

(U.S.$0.01) 

Average share price 

at exercise 

¥– 

(U.S.$–) 

¥– 

(U.S.$–) 

¥855 

(U.S.$5.65) 

¥855 

(U.S.$5.65) 

The fair value of an 

option granted 

under the plan at 

the grant date (*) 

¥865 

(U.S.$5.71) 

¥1,120 

(U.S.$7.40) 

¥1,090 

(U.S.$7.20) 

¥1,230 

(U.S.$8.12) 

Rights execution 

period 

From 9th August, 

2012 

to 8th August, 

2042 

From 7th August, 

2013 

to 6th August, 

2043 

From 13th August, 

2014 

to 12th August, 

2044 

From 12th August, 

2015 

to 11th August, 

2045 

 
   2016 stock option 2017 stock option   

Title and number of 

persons granted 

10 directors 

(excluding outside 

directors) of the 

Bank 

9 directors 

(excluding outside 

directors) of the 

Bank 

  

Number of options 

granted (*) 

52,440 31,920   

Date of grant 9th August, 2016 8th August, 2017   

Exercise price ¥ 1 

(U.S.$0.01) 

¥ 1 

(U.S.$0.01) 

  

Average share price 

at exercise 

¥855 

(U.S.$5.65) 

¥855 

(U.S.$5.65) 

  

The fair value of an 

option granted 

under the plan at 

the grant date (*) 

¥955 

(U.S.$6.31) 

¥1,435 

(U.S.$9.48) 

  

Rights execution 

period 

From 10th August, 

2016 

to 9th August, 

2046 

From 9th August, 

2017 

to 8th August, 

2047 

  

(*) Number of options granted and the fair value of an option granted under the plan at the 

grant date have been adjusted to reflect the consolidation of shares at a ratio of one share 

for every five shares on 1st October, 2017. 
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18. Stock Option Plans (continued) 

 

Movements in stock option and exercise price for the year ended 31st March, 2024 are 

summarized as follows: 
 

 

2012 
stock 
option 

2013 
stock 
option 

2014 
stock 
option 

2015 
stock 
option 

2016 
stock 
option 

2017 
stock 
option 

Not vested:       

Outstanding as of 1st April, 
2023 4,180 3,320 8,140 7,560 17,120 11,300 

Granted – – – – – – 

Forfeited – – – – – – 

Vested – – 3,500 3,060 5,440 3,580 

Outstanding as of 31st 
March, 2024 4,180 3,320 4,640 4,500 11,680 7,720 

Vested:           

Outstanding as of 1st April, 
2023 – – – – – – 

Vested – – 3,500 3,060 5,440 3,580 

Exercised – – 3,500 3,060 5,440 3,580 

Forfeited – – – – – – 

Outstanding as of 31st 
March, 2024 – – – – – – 

 

There were no stock options granted for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024. 

 

Only the actual number of forfeited stock options is reflected because it is difficult to 

rationally estimate the reasonable number of stock options that will be forfeited in the future. 

 



59 

19. Income Taxes 

 

Income taxes applicable to the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries include corporation tax, 

inhabitants’ tax and enterprise tax. 

 

Major components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of 31st March, 2023 and 

2024 were as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Deferred income tax assets:    

Reserve for possible loan losses ¥ 5,263 ¥ 4,266 $ 28,182 

Net defined benefit liability 17 17 116 

Loss on devaluation of securities 299 294 1,948 

Tax loss carryforwards 116 – – 

Deferred hedge losses 501 180 1,191 

Other 1,862 1,868 12,342 

Subtotal 8,061 6,628 43,779 

Valuation allowance for gross 

  deductible temporary differences  

 

(4,912) 

 

(4,081) 

 

(26,958) 

Valuation allowance (Note) (4,912) (4,081) (26,958) 

Total:  Deferred income tax assets 3,149 2,546 16,821 

Deferred income tax liabilities:    

Unrealized gains on other securities (1,744) (5,651) (37,324) 

Deferred hedge gains – (15) (103) 

Net defined benefit asset (1,707) (3,009) (19,878) 

Other (46) (27) (182) 

 

Total:  Deferred income tax liabilities 

 

(3,498) 

 

(8,704) (57,487) 

Net:  Deferred income tax assets  

(liabilities) 

¥  (349) ¥  (6,157) $ (40,666) 

 

Note:  Valuation allowance decreased by ¥830 million (U.S.$5,485 thousand) from 31st 

March, 2023 mainly due to a decrease in valuation allowance for deductible 

temporary differences on reserve for possible loan losses. 
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19. Income Taxes (continued) 

 

A reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the effective tax rate for the year ended 31st March, 

2024 is as follows: 
 

 2024  
Statutory tax rate 30.5%  

Change in valuation allowance (8.9)  

Permanent non-deductible differences, such as 

entertainment expenses 0.7  

Permanent non-taxable differences, such as dividend 

income (2.0)  

Per capita portion of inhabitants’ taxes 0.4  

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and 

affiliates (0.2)  

Elimination of dividends received from subsidiaries 0.9  

Other 0.2  

Effective tax rate 21.5%  

 

For the year ended 31st March, 2023, such difference is less than or equal to 5/100 of the  

statutory tax rate and a reconciliation is therefore omitted. 
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20. Revenue Recognition 

 

(1) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 

 

The Group has a single segment of commercial banking business and information on the 

disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is as follows. 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Fees and commissions:    

Deposit and loan services ¥1,243 ¥1,264 $8,349 

Foreign exchange services 1,800 1,797 11,870 

Trust related services – – – 

Securities related services 886 211 1,398 

Agency services 1,218 2,085 13,777 

Safe-deposit and safe-deposit box 

services 67 65 

 

434 

Others 1,791 2,425 16,020 

Subtotal 7,008 7,850 51,848 

Other income:    

Other incidental services not 

included in fees and commissions  

 

180 

 

171 

 

1,134 

Subtotal 180 171 1,134 

Ordinary income from contracts  

with customers 

 

7,188 

 

8,022 

 

52,982 

Ordinary income other than the above 53,507 44,464 293,667 

Ordinary income ¥60,695 ¥52,486 $346,649 

 

Notes: 1. “Others” under “Fees and commissions” include credit card services and internet  

banking services, etc., which are not classified above.  

2. “Ordinary income other than the above” includes mainly income based on 

“Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10).   

 

(2) Useful information in understanding revenue from contracts with customers 

 

a) Recognition period of revenues 

Revenue is recognized when control of promised goods or services is transferred to a 

customer. Certain fees and commissions (e.g., fees for bond administration services and 

annual fees for credit card services) are recognized over time because the performance 

obligation is satisfied over a specified period of time. 

 

b) Amount of revenues recognized 

The recorded amount of revenues is calculated based on the amount expected to be 

received in exchange for goods or services. Among fees and commissions, credit card 

merchant commissions are calculated based on the amount of points granted, less the 

amount expected to be collected for third parties in the future, which is calculated based 

on actual usage in prior years. 

These revenues do not include a financial component. 
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20. Revenue Recognition (continued) 

 

(3) Balance of contract assets and liabilities, and the transaction price allocated to the 

remaining performance obligations 

 

a) Balance of contract liabilities, etc. 

 

The balances of receivables and contract liabilities arising from contracts with customers 

are as follows. There is no balance of contract assets. 

 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

 

At 1st April, 

2023 

At 31st March, 

2024 

At 1st April, 

2023 

At 31st March, 

2024 

Receivables arising from 

contracts with customers ¥ 318 ¥ 457 $2,106 $3,021 

Contract liabilities ¥ 318 ¥ 338 $2,103 $2,233 

 

 (Millions of yen) 

 

At 1st April, 

2022 

At 31st March, 

2023 

Receivables arising from 

contracts with customers ¥ 372 ¥ 318 

Contract liabilities ¥ 289 ¥ 318 

 

 

Notes: 1. In the consolidated balance sheets, receivables arising from contracts with  

customers and contract liabilities are included in “Other assets” and “Other 

liabilities,” respectively.  

 

2. Contract liabilities consist mainly of the portion of administrative fees for bonds  

and annual fees for credit cards for which consideration is received from 

customers before fulfillment of performance obligations. 

 

3. Of the revenue recognized in the year ended 31st March, 2023, the amount 

included in the balance of contract liabilities at 1st April, 2022 was ¥138 million. 

Of the revenue recognized in the year ended 31st March, 2024, the amount 

included in the balance of contract liabilities at 1st April, 2023 was ¥151 million 

(U.S.$1,000 thousand). 

 

4. No revenue was recognized in the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 from 

performance obligations that were satisfied (or partially satisfied) in prior years. 

 

b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations 

 

The aggregate transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations 

relates to bond administration fees and the expected period of revenue recognition is as 

follows. The amount of annual fees for credit cards, etc., for which the initial expected 

term of the contract is one year or less, has been omitted. The amount of consideration 

received from contracts with customers does not include the amount of variable 

consideration not included in the transaction price.  
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20. Revenue Recognition (continued) 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Within one year ¥87 ¥97 $645 

  Over one year 170 177 1,174 

Total ¥258 ¥275 $1,819 
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21. Segment Information 

 

(1) Reportable segment information 

 

 Though the Group has other businesses in addition to its principal commercial banking 

business, reportable segment information has been omitted as such other businesses 

have only an immaterial effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements 

of the Bank and as such the Group has effectively single segment.  

 

(2) Other segment related information 

 
a. Information by service 

 
 2024 

   Banking 

 

Securities 

investment  Other Total 

 (Millions of yen) 

Ordinary income 

from external 

customers  ¥  25,322 ¥  18,283 ¥  8,880 ¥  52,486 

       
 

 2024 

   Banking 

Securities 

investment Other Total 

 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Ordinary income 

from external 

customers  $ 167,242 $ 120,754 $  58,653 $ 346,649 
 

Note: “Ordinary income” corresponds to net sales of non-banking industries. 
 
 

 2023 

   Banking 

 

Securities 

investment  Other Total 

 (Millions of yen) 

Ordinary income 

from external 

customers  ¥  21,453 ¥  30,784 ¥  8,457 ¥  60,695 

       
 

Note: “Ordinary income” corresponds to net sales of non-banking industries. 
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21. Segment Information (continued) 

 
b. Information by geographic region 

 

i. Ordinary income 

 

Information as to ordinary income from domestic customers was omitted, because 

the amount of ordinary income from domestic customers was more than 90% of 

consolidated ordinary income. 

 

ii. Tangible fixed assets 

 

Information as to tangible fixed assets was omitted, because there was no tangible 

fixed asset located abroad. 
 
c. Major customer’s segment information 

 

Major customer’s segment information is not shown since there is no customer 

accounting for more than 10% of the sales to customers in the consolidated 

statements of income. 

 
d. Information on impairment of fixed assets for each reportable segment 
 

Information on impairment of fixed assets has been omitted since the Group has 
only one reportable segment. 

 
e. Segment information on amortization of goodwill and its remaining balance 
 

Not applicable. 

 
f. Information on gain in negative goodwill for each reportable segment 
 

Not applicable. 
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22. Related Party Transactions 

 

Significant transactions with related parties for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

were as follows: 

 

Name 

Description 

of business 

or 

occupation 

Relationship 

with the Bank 

Description 

of the Bank’s 

transactions Transaction Amount Account Balance 

    (Millions 

of yen) 

(Thousands 

of U.S. 

dollars) 

 (Millions 

of yen) 

(Thousands 

of U.S. 

dollars) 

For the year ended 31st March, 2024 

Tonan 

Building 

Co., Ltd. 

(Note 2) 

Real estate 

leasing 

Companies, etc. 

in which the 

majority of 

voting rights are 

held by the 

Bank’s directors 

and their close 

relatives 

Lending of 

funds 

Receipt of 

interest 

 ¥ (5) 

 

2 

 $ (38) 

 

17 

Loans and 

bills 

discounted 

(Note 3) 

 ¥ 136  $ 904 

         

Hamada 

Animal 

Hospital 

Co., Ltd. 

(Note 4) 

Other 

professional 

services 

Companies, etc. 

in which the 

majority of 

voting rights are 

held by the 

Bank’s directors 

and their close 

relatives 

Lending of 

funds 

Receipt of 

interest 

  (2) 

 

0 

   (17) 

 

1 

Loans and 

bills 

discounted 

(Note 5) 

  27   185 

         

Tadokoro 

Interior 

Decoratio

ns Co., 

Ltd.  

(Note 6) 

Facility 

construction 

business 

Companies, etc. 

in which the 

majority of 

voting rights are 

held by the 

Bank’s directors 

and their close 

relatives 

Lending of 

funds 

Receipt of 

interest 

  (0) 

 

0 

   (3) 

 

1 

Loans and 

bills 

discounted 

(Note 7) 

  13   89 

 

Notes: 1. Terms and conditions of the above transactions are determined in the same 

manner as general transactions with third parties. 

2. 100% of the voting rights are owned by close relatives of Director Hiroyuki 

Hamada. 

3. Director Hiroyuki Hamada and his close relatives have guaranteed the debt. 

4. 100% of the voting rights are owned by close relatives of Director Masahiro 

Hamada. 

5. A close relative of Director Masahiro Hamada has guaranteed the debt. 

6. 98% of the voting rights are owned by close relatives of Director Mitsufumi Ito. 

7. A close relative of Director Mitsufumi Ito has guaranteed the debt. 
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22. Related Party Transactions (continued) 

 

Name 

Description 

of business 

or 

occupation 

Relationship 

with the Bank 

Description 

of the Bank’s 

transactions 

Transaction 

Amount Account Balance 

    (Millions of 

yen) 

 (Millions of 

yen) 

For the year ended 31st March, 2023    

Tonan 

Building 

Co., Ltd. 

(Note 2) 

Real estate 

leasing 

Companies, etc. 

in which the 

majority of 

voting rights are 

held by the 

Bank’s directors 

and their close 

relatives 

Lending of 

funds 

Receipt of 

interest 

 ¥ (6) 

 

2 

Loans and 

bills 

discounted 

(Note 3) 

 ¥ 142 

       

Hamada 

Animal 

Hospital 

Co., Ltd. 

(Note 4) 

Other 

professional 

services 

Companies, etc. 

in which the 

majority of 

voting rights are 

held by the 

Bank’s directors 

and their close 

relatives 

Lending of 

funds 

Receipt of 

interest 

  (2) 

 

0 

Loans and 

bills 

discounted 

(Note 5) 

  30 

       

Tadokoro 

Interior 

Decoratio

ns Co., 

Ltd.  

(Note 6) 

Facility 

construction 

business 

Companies, etc. 

in which the 

majority of 

voting rights are 

held by the 

Bank’s directors 

and their close 

relatives 

Lending of 

funds 

Receipt of 

interest 

  (6) 

 

0 

Loans and 

bills 

discounted 

(Note 7) 

  14 

 

Notes: 1. Terms and conditions of the above transactions are determined in the same 

manner as general transactions with third parties. 

2. 100% of the voting rights are owned by close relatives of Director Hiroyuki 

Hamada. 

3. Director Hiroyuki Hamada and his close relatives have guaranteed the debt. 

4. 100% of the voting rights are owned by close relatives of Director Masahiro 

Hamada. 

5. A close relative of Director Masahiro Hamada has guaranteed the debt. 

6. 98% of the voting rights are owned by close relatives of Director Mitsufumi Ito. 

7. A close relative of Director Mitsufumi Ito has guaranteed the debt. 
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23. Per Share Data 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Yen) (U.S. dollars) 

Net assets per share  ¥ 3,595.38 ¥ 4,029.18 $  26.61 

Basic earnings per share 133.28 174.76 1.15 

Diluted earnings per share 133.11 174.59 1.15 

 

Note 1: The net assets per share is calculated on the basis of the following 

  

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Net assets ¥ 149,959 ¥ 168,229 $ 1,111,088 

Amount excluded from net assets 196 180 1,195 

(stock acquisition rights thereof) 58 40 265 

(non-controlling interests thereof) 138 140 930 

Net assets attributable to common 

stock at year end 149,763 168,048 1,109,893 

Number of shares of common 

stock at year end used for 

calculation of net assets per 

share (in thousands) 41,654 41,707  

 

Note 2: Earnings per share is calculated on the basis of the following  

  

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Profit attributable to shareholders 

of The Shikoku Bank, Ltd. ¥ 5,549 ¥ 7,285 $ 48,119 

Amount not attributable to 

common stockholders － － － 

Profit attributable to common 

shareholders of The Shikoku 

Bank, Ltd. 5,549 7,285 48,119 

Average number of shares of 

common stock during the year 

(in thousands) 41,637 41,689  

Increase in number of shares of 

common stock to calculate 

diluted earnings per share  

(in thousands)  51 39  

(stock acquisition rights thereof) 

(in thousands) 51 39  
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24. Impairment Loss 

 

Because the Bank does not expect recovery of investment due to continuous decline of land 

value and decrease in cash flows from operating activities, the Bank reduced carrying value 

of the following assets to the recoverable amounts and recognized impairment losses of ¥66 

million and ¥63 million (U.S.$420 thousand) for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024, 

respectively. 

 

(1) Kochi prefecture 

a) Major use 

 2023 2024 

(i) Number of branches used in business operation: 4 1 

(ii) Number of idle assets: 1 3 

b) Type 

 Land and buildings for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

c) Impairment loss 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Operating assets ¥ 38 ¥ 8 $ 58 

Land thereof 19 － － 

Buildings thereof 19 8 58 

Idle assets ¥ 1 ¥ 54 $  362 

Land thereof 1 48 317 

Buildings thereof － 6 45 

 

(2) Outside of Kochi prefecture 

a) Major use 

 2023 2024 

Number of branches used in business operations: 2 － 

b) Type 

 Land and buildings for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 

c) Impairment loss 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Operating assets ¥ 26 ¥ － $ － 

Land thereof 13 － － 

Buildings thereof 12 － － 
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24. Impairment Loss (continued) 

 

 At the Bank, the smallest unit of an asset group for recognition and measurement of 

impairment loss is each branch (each branch group in case that branch groups operate 

in association with each other) for which profit and loss is managed on a regular basis 

for managerial accounting in case of operating branches, and is each asset in case of idle 

assets including asset group for which the decision of future disposal has been made. 

And as for consolidated subsidiaries, each subsidiary is considered as the smallest 

grouping unit. 

 

The recoverable amount used to measure the impairment loss is primarily net selling 

price, which is measured mainly based on appraisal value estimated by real estate 

appraisers. 

 

 

25. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

A reconciliation between cash and due from banks in the consolidated balance sheets at 31st 

March, 2023 and 2024 and cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash 

flows for the years then ended was as follows: 

 

 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Cash and due from banks ¥411,090 ¥217,360 $1,435,576 

Due from banks other than the Bank 

of Japan 

 

(8,039) 

 

(2,292) 

 

(15,143) 

Cash and cash equivalents ¥403,051 ¥215,067 $1,420,433 
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26. Other Comprehensive Income 

 

Other comprehensive income for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2024 consisted of 

the following: 
 2023 2024 2024 

 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of 

U.S. dollars) 

Unrealized losses on securities:   

Gains (losses) recognized during the year ¥(20,176) ¥12,145 $ 80,219 

Reclassification adjustment to net income 5,784 814 5,378 

Amount before tax effect (14,392) 12,960 85,597 

Tax effect 4,434 (3,906) (25,802) 

Unrealized losses on securities (9,957) 9,053 59,795 

Net deferred hedge gains:    

Gains (losses) recognized during the year 5,607 (69) (458) 

Reclassification adjustment to net income (4,449) 1,175 7,766 

Amount before tax effect 1,157 1,106 7,308 

Tax effect (352) (336) (2,225) 

Net deferred hedge gains 805 769 5,083 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans:    

Gains recognized during the year 1,114 3,833 25,321 

Reclassification adjustment to net income (151) (184) (1,216) 

Amount before tax effect 962 3,649 24,105 

Tax effect (293) (1,111) (7,340) 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 669 2,538 16,765 

Share of other comprehensive income of companies 

accounted for by equity method: 

   

Gains recognized during the year 8 49 330 

Reclassification adjustment to net income - - - 

Amount before tax effect 8 49 330 

Tax effect - - - 

Share of other comprehensive income of  

companies accounted for by equity method 

 

8 

 

49 

 

330 

Total other comprehensive income ¥(8,474) ¥12,411 $81,973 
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27. Subsequent Event 

 

Rebuilding of head office 

 

At the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 10th May, 2024, the Bank resolved to rebuild 

its head office at the current location. 

 

1. Purpose 

Since the Bank’s head office was built in 1963, more than 60 years ago, it has been aging. 

By rebuilding the head office to enhance its earthquake resistance and disaster prevention 

capabilities, the Bank aims to ensure the safety of local residents, customers, and 

employees, and to strengthen its business continuity system. 

 

2. Overview of head office rebuilding 

The current annex and parking lot will be utilized to construct three buildings: a new head 

office building, a new headquarters building, and a parking lot building. 

 

(1) New head office building 

(i) Location 1-1-1 Minamiharimaya-cho, Kochi City 

(ii) Site area 1,941.57m2 

(iii) Scheduled completion Spring 2031 

(iv) Construction cost To be determined 

 

(2) New headquarters building 

(i) Location 7-4 Sakaimachi, Kochi City, and other 

(ii) Site area 2,992.08m2 

(iii) Scheduled completion Summer 2028 

(iv) Construction cost To be determined 

 

(2) New parking lot building 

(i) Location 1-6 Sakaimachi, Kochi City 

(ii) Site area 1,414.28m2 

(iii) Scheduled completion Summer 2026 

(iv) Construction cost To be determined 

 

3. Impact of head office rebuilding 

Depreciation is scheduled to increase by approximately ¥300 million ($1,981 thousand) 

for the year ending 31st March, 2025 due to the adoption of a new useful life for the 

current head office and other facilities as a result of the resolution to rebuild the head 

office. Other effects are currently being assessed. 

 

Appropriation of retained earnings 

 

The following appropriation of retained earnings as of 31st March, 2024 was approved at the 

Company’s shareholders’ meeting held on 27th June, 2024: 

 Total amount 

Millions of yen 

(Thousands of U.S. 

dollars) 

Per share 

amount 

Yen 

 (U.S. dollars) 

Dividend record 

date 

Effective 

date 

Common stock ¥ 941 million 

($6,216 thousand) 

¥22.50  

($0.15) 

31st March, 

2024 

28th June, 

2024 

 


